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DISTRICT COURT 

COUNTY OF CLARK, NEVADA 

JASON T. SMITH, an individual 
 
  Plaintiff, 
vs. 
 
KATY ZILVERBERG, an individual; 
VICTORIA EAGAN, an individual; and DOES I 
through X, inclusive, and ROE 
CORPORATIONS I though X, inclusive, 
 

Defendant(s). 
 

Case No.: A-19-798171-C 
Dept. No.: XXIV 
 
PLAINTIFF’S OPPOSITION TO 
DEFENDANTS’ SPECIAL MOTION TO 
DISMISS PURSUANT TO NEV. REV. 
STAT. § 41.660 (ANTI-SLAPP)  
 
Hearing Date: October 3, 2019 
Hearing Time: 9:00 a.m. 

  

Plaintiff Jason T. Smith (“Plaintiff” or “Smith”), an individual, by and through counsel of 

record, the law firm of Holley Driggs Walch Fine Puzey Stein & Thompson, hereby files his 

Opposition to Defendants’ Special Motion to Dismiss Pursuant to Nev. Rev. Stat. § 41.660 (Anti-

SLAPP) (the “Opposition”).  

 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

Case Number: A-19-798171-C
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9/20/2019 2:20 PM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT
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This Opposition is made based upon the following Memorandum of Points and Authorities, 

the declaration of Jason T. Smith (“Smith Declaration”), attached hereto as Exhibit “1”, the papers 

and pleadings on file herein, and any such oral argument as may be adduced at a hearing on this 

matter. 

Dated this 20th day of September 2019. 

HOLLEY DRIGGS WALCH 
FINE PUZEY STEIN & THOMPSON 
 
 
/s/ Kimberly P. Stein  
BRIAN W. BOSCHEE, ESQ.  
Nevada Bar No. 7612 
KIMBERLY P. STEIN, ESQ. 
Nevada Bar No. 8495 
MIKKAELA VELLIS, ESQ. 
Nevada Bar No. 14294 
400 South Fourth Street, Third Floor 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101 
  
Attorneys for Plaintiff 

 
 
 

MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES 

I. INTRODUCTION 

Defendants’ Katy Zilverberg (“Zilverberg”) and Victoria Eagan (“Eagan,” collectively 

with Zilverberg referred to herein as “Defendants”) Special Motion to Dismiss Pursuant to Nev. 

Rev. Stat. § 41.660 (Anti-SLAPP) (the “Motion to Dismiss”) is a misguided attempt to apply NRS 

41.660 surrounding free speech to a situation where both Defendants intentionally set out on a 

course and pattern of conduct to defame and destroy Plaintiff’s name and livelihood before the 

world without privilege or justification.  Ratification of Defendants’ logic and rationale of free 

speech as set forth in their Motion to Dismiss would effectively destroy well settled Nevada law 

and turn Tort law as it is known in the United States upside down.   

/ / / 
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When Defendants’ Motion is stripped of its histrionics, inadmissible evidence, and 

unsupportable assertions, Defendants’ chief argument is that the Court should summarily deny 

Smith the opportunity to challenge Defendants’ defamatory statements and clear his name. To 

sway the Court in their favor, Defendants unabashedly purport to champion the cause of the public 

by protecting “free speech rights” and to portray themselves as the “courageous” victims. 

However, when the Court understands the malicious scheme devised by Defendants, and carried 

out by them, to ruin Smith’s reputation and destroy his longstanding career in the thrifting 

community. 

In an effort to conceal their misdeeds, Defendants omit telling the Court about their obvious 

motives to harm Smith. Defendants’ respective declarations, each attached as exhibits to their 

Motion to Dismiss, portray to the Court that they are merely members of the thrifting community 

but fail to truly establish the relationship and personal animosity each Defendant has towards 

Smith. The truth is that Defendants have shown contempt for Smith for many years, resulting from 

an ended friendship and personal feud.  Defendants’ defamatory statements are not made as 

concerned individuals alerting the public on issues of public interest, but rather are fueled by 

nothing more than a personal vendetta against Smith due to a failing friendship and disputes arising 

therefrom. Defendants are attempting to rely on the fact that Smith is a “so-called” public figure 

in support of their arguments that Defendants’ statements pertain to a public interest; however, just 

because Defendants allege that Smith is a “so-called” public figure, does not give them free reign 

to defame him and post false statements about him. The fact that Smith is a “so-called” public 

figure pertains to the malice requirement under a defamation per se claim, which Smith has clearly 

proven through scheme and vendetta to harm and injure Smith, but the fact that Smith is a “so-

called” public figure does not prove that any statements they say about him automatically pertain 

to a matter of interest.  

Defendants cannot meet their burden of persuasion under NRS 41.660, as Defendants had 

clear knowledge of the falsity of their statements and such statements were made to further bolster 

private animosity and dispute between the parties, not a matter of public interest. The facts are 

220
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clear in this matter – the statements posted about Smith are false. Defendants knew the statements 

were false and failed to verify the veracity such highly defamatory statements prior to posting them 

online, which could have been easily done through online records. However, it was a result of the 

failing friendship, hard feelings, and personal spite that Defendants subsequently created a scheme 

to injure Smith through his reputation and business in the thrifting community, a community which 

Defendants are involved in.  Defendants posted false statements about temporary restraining orders 

against Smith and other criminal conduct for the purpose of bolstering support against Smith to 

cause greater harm to Smith and his reputation. Not only do Defendants have a personal spite 

against Smith, but Smith is also a direct competitor to Defendants. Defendants are looking to build 

their business in the thrifting community, giving Defendants additional intent to defame Smith in 

order to capitalize their own business by destroying the reputation and career of one of their top 

competitors.     

It is clear here that we have a case of two individuals who have smeared another competitor, 

and former friend’s name, throughout the thrifting community in hopes of intimidating and 

embarrassing him out of a lucrative marketplace.  To suggest that such outrageous acts are 

protected based on alleged free speech would be disingenuous and improper.   

Moreover, there has been no discovery conducted by Defendants in this matter to verify 

any of the facts or alleged evidence presented in this matter.  The veracity and reliability of this 

evidence is not established and is disputed here, as Smith has not had the opportunity for any cross-

examination of statements from third-party witnesses or verify that posts and text message threads 

used to support the Motion to Dismiss are not edited or varied in any way.  Thereby, this Court 

should allow this case to move forward, allow discovery to take place, and allow this case to be 

heard on the merits, as it should, and Smith respectfully requests that this Court deny Defendants’ 

Motion to Dismiss.  

Based on the foregoing, Smith respectfully requests that the Court deny Defendants' 

Special Motion to Dismiss in its entirety.  Smith also respectfully requests that this Court deny 

Defendants’ requests for costs and fees, and award Smith costs and fees for having to respond to 
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Defendants’ baseless Motion to Dismiss.  

II. STATEMENT OF RELEVANT FACTS  

Smith has been a long-time and well-known member of the thrifting community, a 

community of individuals who buy and sell used goods online.  See Smith Declaration, ¶ 4, 

Exhibit 1. Over the years, Smith has built his reputation in the thrifting community and has 

established a highly successful business doing so.  Id. at ¶ 5.  Smith’s business is based on his well-

known brand name and reputation as a knowledgeable and successful thrifter.  Id. at ¶ 6   Smith is 

considered an expert in the thrifting community and many individuals seek advice and expertise 

from Smith relating to thrifting and buying and selling online, which is a lucrative and necessary 

part of Smith’s successful business.  Id. ¶ 7.   

Defendants are also a part of the thrifting community.  Id. ¶ 8.  Smith and Defendants have 

known each other for many years now.  Id. ¶ 9.  Smith and Eagan were friends prior to Eagan 

meeting Zilverberg.  Id. ¶ 10. Smith introduced Eagan into the Facebook thrifting community.  Id.  

Prior to Defendants meeting each other, Zilverberg was an administrator in Smith’s Facebook 

group, which has thousands of followers and supporters from the thrifting community  Id. at ¶ 11. 

Smith was supportive of Zilverberg and her career in the thrifting community. Id. at ¶ 12. Smith 

personally helped Zilverberg gain supporters and rallied his Facebook group to vote for Zilverberg 

which led her to winning the Shine Award, a prestigious award given to members of the thrifting 

community each year at the annual eBay Open conference.  Id.  As a result, Zilverberg became 

well-known and established a successful business in the thrifting community. Id. 

Eagan and Zilverberg eventually began a relationship, and Eagan informed Smith that she 

was going to leave her husband to continue a relationship with Zilverberg.  Id. at ¶ 13.  At that 

time, Smith was also friends with Eagan’s now ex-husband and was surprised at the news of Eagan 

and Zilverberg’s relationship.  Id. at ¶ 14. Defendants became upset that Smith did not fully support 

their relationship, which was solely a result of the fact that Smith was previously friends with 

Eagan and her husband.  Id. at ¶ 15. As a result, Defendants developed animosity and personal 

spite towards Smith, and Defendants tried to turn many of Smith’s friends against him.  Id. at ¶ 16. 
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Since this time, Smith distanced himself from Defendants and cut off all relations with them. Id. 

at ¶ 17. 

Soon thereafter, Defendants began a campaign against Smith to injure his business and 

smear his reputation in their inner circle of friends, which are all a part of the thrifting community, 

and the larger public thrifting community. Id. at ¶ 18. Upon information and belief, Defendants 

are now engaged.  Id. at ¶ 19. Defendants are also in the process of trying to grow their businesses 

in the thrifting community, much of which is done through their online presence in the community 

and the YouTube video channel. Id. at ¶ 20. Smith is one of Defendants’ top competitors, as he is 

one of the most well-known thrifters and advisors in the community. Id.   

On or about June 14, 2018, Zilverberg posted a video on YouTube entitled “Jason T Smith 

is an abusive bully” (the “YouTube Video”), wherein Zilverberg goes on an approximately 33-

minute rant about Plaintiff.  Id. at ¶ 21.  Zilverberg calls Smith names and also makes numerous 

false statements that Smith has and will try to “take people down.” Id. at ¶ 22.  For example, 

Zilverberg falsely states that Smith has, and will, intentionally get persons thrown out of various 

business events, again to allegedly “take people down.”  Id. at ¶ 23.   These statements made by 

Zilverberg falsely infer, among other things, that Plaintiff is predatory and has harassed 

individuals, which is not true. Id. at ¶ 24.  The statements made by Zilverberg, and endorsed by 

Eagan, have had and continue to have a severe effect on Smith’s reputation and has damaged his 

business. Id.  Defendants are aware that the YouTube video is still posted by other users online 

and have made no effort to have the YouTube video removed. Id. at ¶ 25.   

On or about April 25, 2019, Eagan posted statements on her Facebook that Smith has 

multiple restraining orders against him. Id. at ¶ 26.   This post was endorsed by Zilverberg. Id.   

Defendants have falsely alleged to the public that Smith has a criminal record of restraining orders 

and a verified history of harassment, which Plaintiff does not.  Id. at ¶ 27.  These statements have 

a severe impact on Plaintiff’s reputation and business in the community. Id. at ¶ 28. Smith has 

never had any restraining orders against him.  Id. at ¶ 29.  Defendants have attached a background 

check of a “Jason Todd Smith” to their Motion to Dismiss, see Exhibit 16 attached to Defendants’ 
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Motion to Dismiss; however, the majority of the criminal charges contained therein are not 

connected in any way to Smith.  Id. at ¶ 30.   The documents produced include criminal charges 

of an individual entirely unrelated to Smith. Id.  

While Smith previously lived in Ohio, since September 2000 Smith has only ever lived in 

California and Nevada. Id. at ¶ 31. A majority of the criminal charges, including misdemeanors 

and felony charges, take place in Ohio after September 2000. Id.  Smith was no longer residing in 

Ohio at the time these alleged charges occurred.  Id.  These charges are not related to Smith. Id. 

Smith admits that many of the traffic violations prior to the year 2000 contained in the background 

report are mine.  Id. at ¶ 32.  However, the charges also notably include a “minor in possession” 

and “carry a concealed weapon” in 2006 – in 2006 Smith was 35 years old, residing in Nevada, 

and Smith has never owned a gun in his life.  Id. at ¶ 33.  These charges, except for the traffic 

violations that Smith admits to, are clearly unrelated to Smith, yet Defendants continue to injure 

Smith’s reputation by now associating Smith’s name with additional false charges in a public Court 

document. Id. at ¶ 34.  Notably, none of the charges included in the background report produced 

by Defendants include any restraining orders.  Id. at ¶ 35. 

Defendants’ false statements about Smith are fueled by a private dispute with Smith and a 

subsequent vendetta to injure Smith and his reputation. Id. at ¶ 36.  Moreover, Defendants are 

trying to build their business in the thrifting community and also benefit and gain advantage if 

Smith’s reputation, as a top thrifter in the community, is ruined and his business is destroyed. Id. 

at ¶ 37.  Defendants are also capitalizing by using Smith’s brand and creating controversy to bring 

viewers to their online social media and YouTube channel.  Id. at ¶ 38. Defendants’ unlawful 

actions are nothing more than an attempt by Defendants to publicize a private dispute, gain 

supporters in the community, harm Smith’s brand name and reputation, and capitalize their 

business. Id. at ¶ 39.   

As a result of the previous and ongoing defamatory statements and malicious conduct by 

Defendants, Plaintiff was forced to hire counsel and filed a Complaint against Defendants for 1) 

defamation per se; 2) conspiracy; and 3) permanent and preliminary injunction, in an attempt to 
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stop Defendants’ campaign to smear his name and reputation and to stop further irreparable harm 

and damage from occurring to his business. In or around July 16, 2019, Defendants agreed to a 

Joint Stipulation and Order for Preliminary Injunction, which was entered by the Court on or about 

July 19, 2019, which was agreed to by the parties to prevent further defamatory conduct and to 

prevent further harm. The parties were also trying to work out a settlement at such time, and Smith 

provided Defendants with a courtesy extension to file their Answer.  Soon thereafter, Defendants 

hired new counsel and immediately filed their Motion to Dismiss, despite the fact the parties were 

attempting to work out a settlement.  Defendants continue to cause Smith further harm and damage 

through their continued defamation and their tactics in this lawsuit. Defendants have no basis to 

bring their Motion to Dismiss pursuant to NRS 41.660, as established herein, and are causing 

Smith to spend additional unnecessary costs and expenses.  

III. LEGAL ARGUMENT  

A. Legal Standard for Nevada’s Anti-SLAPP Law. 

Under Nevada's anti-SLAPP statutes and pursuant to NRS 41.660, a defendant may file a 

Special Motion to Dismiss under § 41.660, which creates a two-step inquiry process for the Court 

19. Nev. Rev. Stat. § 41.660(3).  

“If an action is brought against a person based upon a good faith communication in 

furtherance of the right to petition or the right to free speech in direct connection with an issue of 

public concern: (a) The person against whom the action is brought may file a special motion to 

dismiss…”. (NRS 41.660(1)(a).) “If a special motion to dismiss is filed pursuant to subsection 2, 

the court shall: 

a) Determine whether the moving party has established, by a preponderance of the 
evidence that the claim is based upon a good faith communication in furtherance of the 
right to petition or the right to free speech in direct connection with an issue of public 
concern; 

 
b) If the court determines that the moving party has met the burden pursuant to paragraph 

(a), determine whether the plaintiff has demonstrated with prima facie evidence a 
probability of prevailing on the claim. 

(NRS 41.660(3) (a and b). 
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 Defendants must first establish, by a preponderance of the evidence, that their claim meets 

the requirements of NRS 41.660(3)(a), “a good faith communication in furtherance of the right to 

petition or the right to free speech in direct connection with an issue of public concern.” Absent 

such a finding, the Defendants’ instant Motion to Dismiss must be denied. If the court makes the 

required finding, “the burden shifts to the plaintiff to show ‘with prima facie evidence a probability 

of prevailing on the claim.” Shapiro v. Welt, 133 Nev. 35, 38, 389 P.3d 262, 267.  

B. Defendants Fail to Satisfy the First Prong of the Anti-SLAPP Analysis and Thereby 
Their Motion to Dismiss Must Be Denied. 

Defendants’ Motion to Dismiss must be denied as Defendants cannot establish by a 

preponderance of the evidence that their claim is based upon a good faith communication in 

furtherance of the right to petition or the right to free speech in direct connection with an issue of 

public concern.  Defendants’ Motion to Dismiss fails in the application of NRS 41.637(2), a “Good 

faith communication in furtherance of the right to petition or the right to free speech in direct 

connection with an issue of public concern … which is truthful or is made without knowledge of 

its falsehood.” (NRS 41.637(2).) 

The operative phrase, “good faith communication in furtherance of the right to petition or 

the right to free speech in direct connection with an issue of public concern,” has been “explicitly 

defined by statute in NRS 41.637.” Shapiro, 133 Nev. at 37.  NRS 41.637 specifically defines the 

phrase “good faith communication in furtherance of the right to petition or the right to free speech 

in direct connection with an issue of public concern” as any of the following: 

1. Communication that is aimed at procuring any governmental or electoral action, result 
or outcome; 
 

2. Communication of information or a complaint to a Legislator, officer or employee of 
the Federal Government, this state or a political subdivision of this state, regarding a 
matter reasonably of concern to the respective governmental entity; 

 
3. Written or oral statement made in direct connection with an issue under consideration 

by a legislative, executive or judicial body, or any other official proceeding authorized 
by law; or 

 
4. Communication made in direct connection with an issue of public interest in a place 

open to the public or in a public forum which is truthful or is made without knowledge 
of its falsehood. 
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NRS 41.637.   

Importantly, these four categories are the only categories that are protected under the 

Nevada Anti-SLAPP statute. See Delucchi v. Songer, 133 Nev. 290, 299, 396 P.3d 826, 831 (“a 

defendant's conduct constitutes ‘good faith communication in furtherance of the right to petition 

or the right to free speech in direct connection with an issue of public concern’ if it falls within 

one of the four categories enumerated in NRS 41.637 and ‘is truthful or is made without knowledge 

of its falsehood.’” (quoting NRS 41.637)).  

1. Defendants’ Statements Are False and Were Made with Knowledge of their 
Falsehood. 

The Court in Shapiro held,  

We conclude that the term “good faith” does not operate independently within the 
anti-SLAPP statute. Rather, it is part of the phrase “good faith communication in 
furtherance of the right to petition or the right to free speech in direct connection 
with an issue of public concern.” This phrase is explicitly defined by statute in NRS 
41.637. Further, the phrase “made without knowledge of its falsehood” has a well-
settled and ordinarily understood meaning. The declarant must be unaware that the 
communication is false at the time it was made. 

Shapiro, 133 Nev. at 38. 

The Court further held, “Finally, no communication falls within the purview of NRS 

41.660 unless it is ‘truthful or is made without knowledge of its falsehood.’” Id. at 40. The right 

to free speech does not protect defamatory statements. See Beauharnais v. Illinois, 343 U.S. 250, 

266 (1952) (holding that libelous statements are outside the realm of constitutionally protected 

speech); Gertz v. Robert Welch, Inc. 418 US 323, 340 (1974) (explaining that “there is no 

constitutional value in false statements of fact”). 

Here, Defendant Eagan posted statements regarding Smith on her Facebook account, 

wherein she included a statement that Smith had multiple restraining orders against him, ultimately 

implying that not only does Smith have a criminal record but also that Smith has a verified history 

of harassment.  Defendant Zilverberg endorsed this post on Eagan’s Facebook.  Notably, nowhere 

in Defendants’ Motion to Dismiss is there any evidence that Smith has ever any restraining orders 

against him. Defendants attach an alleged investigation and “background report” on “Jason Todd 

Smith”, see Exhibit 16 attached to Defendants’ Motion to Dismiss, which includes criminal 
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records. However, Defendants clearly failed to do their due diligence when conducting the 

background investigation, as many of the alleged criminal charges provided in the background 

report have no relation to Smith.  Notably, Jason Todd Smith is a common name. While Smith 

admits that many of the traffic violations included in the background report are his, the remaining 

alleged charges, including underage possession of a gun and aggregated disorderly conduct, which 

occurred in the State of Ohio, have no relation to Smith.  Smith has only ever resided in California 

and Nevada. At no time has Smith ever resided in Ohio nor was he ever charged with such crimes 

as alleged in the Motion to Dismiss.  

Rather this is a desperate attempt by Defendants to cover up their misdeeds by distracting 

the Court with irrelevant and false information. Defendants continue to defame Smith by falsely 

associating his identity with unrelated misdemeanor and felony charges in a public Court 

document, which is in line with furthering Defendants’ scheme to injure Plaintiff and destroy his 

reputation and career. Moreover, even a complete review of the background report and all the 

evidence provided in the Motion to Dismiss illustrates that there is no evidence of any restraining 

orders against Smith as he has never had any restraining order, which Defendants are clearly aware 

of.   

Moreover, Zilverberg posted a video on YouTube devoting over 33-minutes to ranting 

about Smith, wherein Zilverberg makes a false statement, among others, that Smith has, and will, 

find out where people live in order to “take them down,” inferring that Smith stalks people. 

Zilverberg continues throughout the video to make false statements that Smith intentionally gets 

persons thrown out of various business events, again to “take people down.”  Defendants’ Motion 

to Dismiss provides alleged statements from an individual who says that Smith “’dug up dirt’ on 

a rival thrifter, which was sent to eBay, resulting in eBay rescinding her invite. See Defendants’ 

Motion to Dismiss, 16:15-17. There is no evidence to establish that Smith “dug up dirt” nor do 

they even what such statement means. Furthermore, this evidence does not establish that 

intentional had her thrown out of an event to “take someone down” or intentionally cause harm.  

Nor does this establish any predatory or anti-social behavior, as Defendants allege.  

228



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

-12- 

Zilverberg also makes a false statement that Smith has and will find out where people live 

in order to take them down. There is no evidence set forth in Defendants’ Motion to Dismiss that 

establishes Smith found out where someone lived in order to intentionally cause that person harm, 

because such is simply not true and Defendants.   

Zilverberg also alleges that Smith has caused people to want to commit suicide. This 

statement is not only false, but it implicates Smith as criminal.  This far exceeds any scope 

protected as free speech and goes far beyond mere opinion testimony.  Yet, Defendants don’t 

present any substantive evidence to establish this statement is true, because once again it is entirely 

false and Defendants are aware of this.  

 Defendant made numerous false and highly statements about Smith, including criminal 

charges. Defendants’ Motion to Dismiss provides no evidence, substantive or otherwise, to 

establish any truth to any of these statements, but rather these statements were intentionally made 

with knowledge they were false, and/or without any due diligence to determine if they were true, 

to harm Smith resulting from a personal vendetta and a scheme to capitalize on their business 

through ruining Smith’s business and reputation.  

Moreover, it is entirely disingenuous and an insult to this Court for Defendants to post 

highly defamatory statements about Smith and now, in an attempt to excuse their misconduct, 

claim that this statement was made without knowledge of falsehood. Defendants had a personal 

relationship with Smith, had known him for a long time, and any information regarding alleged 

restraining order is public record and verifiable.  Defendants cannot now attempt to turn the blind 

eye and play naïve to the situation after they posted such a defamatory statement, when it is clear 

Defendants had knowledge it was not true and the ability and duty to verify its veracity prior to 

posting a statement that infers Smith has a criminal history.  

 If this Court were to believe what Defendants have asserted in their Motion to Dismiss, 

then no individual could ever bring a claim for defamation and be successful, as any person 

accused of defamation could excuse their misconduct by a blanket statement they were unaware 

that the information was false.  Such principal would allow individuals to post false and defamatory 
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statement for the purposes of hurting another out of spite, as we have here, and allow harm and 

damage to occur, without any repercussion as a result of the misconduct. Such principal would go 

against Tort law as established in this country and would render all causes of action for defamation 

moot.  

Applicable law prevents exactly from what Defendants are attempting to do – make false 

statements about a business competitor in order to gain supporters, decrease the market-share, and 

increase their own personal businesses.  This is unlawful. The statements posted about Smith are 

clearly false and Defendants cannot merely turn a blind eye and excuse their misconduct by 

alleging they did not know the statements were false, as such is one again not true.  

2. Defendants Cannot Show That Their Communications Were Made in Good 
Faith. 

The communication for which Defendants seek NRS 41.660 relief were not good faith 

communications to promote the furtherance of free speech in direct connection with an issue of 

public concern.  In an attempt to distract from their clear misdeeds, Defendants try to rely on the 

incorrect notion that because Smith is well-known and has notoriety in the thrifting community, 

they are entitled to say whatever they please about him, false or otherwise. Notably, Defendants 

rely on the fact that Smith is a well-known figure in the thrifting community to support their anti-

SLAPP analysis, but also often refer to him as an “alleged” public figure in their Motion to Dismiss 

when appears convenient for their argument.  However, regardless, stating that Smith has multiple 

restraining orders and inferring to the public that Smith finds out where people live to “take them 

down” is highly defamatory and is not covered under free speech protection.   

Defendants’ statements regarding Smith go far beyond any opinion statements about 

Smith, but rather Defendants use their online social media and YouTube as avenues to make 

malicious and reckless false statement about Smith for purpose of destroying his reputation and 

career in the thrifting community, a community wherein Defendants are conveniently direct 

competitors of Smith.  Defendants are not “courageous” victims, as they paint themselves to be, 

but rather such is just an attempt by Defendants to distract this Court from the clear vengeance and 

personal animosity Defendants have towards Smith, resulting from a failed friendship and 
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subsequent hurt feelings.  Not only do Defendants have a personal relationship with Smith that 

clearly shows Defendants intent and motive to defame Smith, Defendants are also up and coming 

in the thrifting world, a world that some would say Smith dominates or at least is a top competitor 

in.  Smith is a direct competitor to Defendants and Defendants would benefit if Smith’s reputation 

was destroyed.   

Aside from the fact that Defendants made clear false statements, which in itself establishes 

the communication were made in bad faith, there is nothing in Defendants’ Motion to Dismiss that 

establishes Defendants statements were good faith out of public concern.  On the contrary, it is 

clear Defendants, out of personal spite, are attempting any way possible to destroy Smith, his 

reputation, and his position in the thrifting world.   

3. Defendants’ Communications are NOT “an Issue of Public Interest”. 

Thus, in order to claim protection under the fourth category, the moving party must 

demonstrate three things: (1) that a communication directly connects to an issue of public interest; 

(2) that a particular communication was made in a place open to the public or in a public forum; 

and (3) that the communication was truthful or is made without knowledge of its falsehood. 

In Shapiro, the Nevada Supreme Court adopted guiding principles articulated by California 

courts on what distinguishes a private interest from a “public interest:” 

1. “public interest” does not equate with mere curiosity; 
 

2. a matter of public interest should be something of concern to a substantial number of 
people; a matter of concern to a speaker and a relatively small specific audience is not 
a matter of public interest; 

 
3. there should be some degree of closeness between the challenged statements and 

the asserted public interest—the assertion of a broad and amorphous public interest 
is not sufficient; 

 
4. the focus of the speaker's conduct should be the public interest rather than a mere 

effort to gather ammunition for another round of private controversy; and 
 

5. a person cannot turn otherwise private information into a matter of public interest 
simply by communicating it to a large number of people. 

 
Shapiro, 389 P.3d at 268 (quoting Piping Rock Partners, Inc. v. David Lerner Assocs., Inc., 946 

F.Supp.2d 957, 968 (N.D. Cal. 2013), aff'd, 609 F. App'x 497 (9th Cir. 2015) (emphasis added); 
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see also Pope v. Fellhauer, 2019 WL 1313365, 437 P.3d 171 (Nev. March 21, 2019).  

 In Pope v. Fellhauer, a key mark case on Nevada’s anti-SLAPP law, the Nevada Supreme 

Court was unanimous in its decision for the litigants who had sued for defamation. 2019 WL 

1313365, 437 P.3d 171 (Nev. March 21, 2019). The case involved a dispute between three cul-de-

sac neighbors – the neighbors did not get along and had multiple verbal altercations. Id. In that 

case, Mr. Pope began making statements about the Fellhauers on social media sites, such as Twitter 

and Altert-ID, a “neighborhood crime-reporting website”, alleging that the Fellhauers were 

dangerous, sick, mentally unstable, they were the reason behind the neighborhood being labeled a 

“crime zone,” and asserting the Fellhauers recorded a naked 1-year old swimming in Mr. Pope’s 

pool.  Id.  Eventually, the Fellhauers filed a defamation complaint against Mr. Pope and in response 

Mr. Pope filed an anti-SLAPP motion to dismiss. Id. The Court looked to the above listed factors 

in determining whether there was a “public interest” or “public concern”, and in applying these 

factors, the Court determined that Mr. Pope was simply making public his private feud with the 

Fellhauers. Id.  The Court found it significant that Mr. Pope engaged in name-calling: “it is unclear 

how calling the Fellhauers “‘weird,’ ‘wack-jobs,’ ‘EXTREMELY MENTALLY UNSTABLE,’ 

‘crazy,’ and ‘sick” conveyed anything other than ‘a single [person being] upset with the status 

quo.’… Thus, we cannot conclude that the derogatory remarks about his neighbors were directly 

related to an issue of public concern.”  Id. at *3. The Court ultimately concluded,, that “[w]e see 

no evidence that anyone—other than his two friends—were concerned with Pope’s commentary 

or that Pope was adding to a preexisting discussion.” Id. at *2.  

 Pope v. Fellhauer is identical to the case at issue here.  Similarly, here the evidence in this 

matter clearly establishes that this is not a public interest but a mere effort by Defendants to gather 

ammunition for another round of private controversy, which is not protected speech under the anti-

SLAPP analysis.  The parties clearly have an ongoing personal dispute relating to a failed 

friendship that has caused hurt feelings and personal spite.  As a result, Defendants have used hurt 

feelings and personal spite to fuel a scheme to injure Smith and his reputation for their personal 

gain.  
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 Moreover, Defendants allege in their Motion to Dismiss that they were protecting the 

thrifting world from Smith and his “anti-social behavior.”  First, it is unclear how statements 

directed toward a community of approximately 55,000 people, out of approximately 330 million 

people living in the United States, constitutes a “public concern.”  Second, it is unclear how 

statements that Smith allegedly has a criminal record, including temporary restraining order, is 

directly connected with Defendants’ alleged “public interest.” These statements are not directly 

connected to the thrifting, and buying and selling used goods, which is the market that Defendants’ 

statements were directed at.  Rather, Defendants’ conduct proves to be motivated by the sole 

purpose of ruining Smith’s reputation out of personal spite and animosity and capitalizing on their 

own careers by destroying a competitor’s business, not any alleged “public interest” or “public 

concern.”  

Defendants’ false statements were made in an effort to publicize personal and private 

controversy to gain supporters and sympathy against Smith. Defendants have failed to identify any 

legitimate public concern or interest, other than persuade others to dislike Smith as they do and 

find supporters to help damage and ruin Smith’s career.  

The false and defamatory statements made by Defendants are not protected as free speech, 

as they were not made in good faith, are not a matter of public interest, and were made as a result 

of hurt feelings, spite, and a scheme on behalf of Defendant to harm Smith, and for these reasons, 

Defendants’ Motion to Dismiss must be denied.  

C. Defendants Fail to Satisfy the Second Prong of the Anti-SLAPP Analysis Because 
Smith Will Likely Prevail on His Claims. 

Even if the Anti-SLAPP statute is applicable to this case, the Motion to Dismiss should be 

denied because Plaintiffs have met the burden of establishing, by clear evidence, a prima facie case 

of defamation and conspiracy, as allege in Smith’s Complaint. 

1. Defamation Per Se.  

Defamation per se is used to “protect the personal reputation of an individual.” Clark 

County Sch. Dist. V. Virtual Educ. Software, Inc., 213 P. 3d 496, 504 (Nev. 2009) (citing 53 C.J.S. 

Libel and Slander; Injurious Falsehood §312 (2005); Hurlbut v. Gulf Atlantic Life Ins. Co., 749 
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S.W.2d 762, 766 (Tex. 1987)). A prima facie case is established if the plaintiff alleges: “(1) a false 

and defamatory statement by the defendant concerning the plaintiff; (2) an unprivileged 

publication to a third person; (3) fault, amounting to at least negligence; and (4) actual or presumed 

damages.” Pacquiao v. Mayweather, 803 F.Supp.2d 1208, 1211 (D. Nev. 2011) (citing Wynn v. 

Smith, 117 Nev. 6, 16 P.3d 424, 427 (2001)). 

Smith has met his burden of establishing a prima facie claim for defamation per se and the 

evidence established thus far support all essential elements of his claim. Foremost, the statements 

posted on Defendant Eagan’s Facebook, and endorsed by Defendant Zilverberg, that Smith has 

multiple restraining orders are clearly defamatory and have been proven through public records to 

be false. Smith does not have any restraining orders. 

Moreover, there is no evidence, which is proven in Defendants’ Motion to Dismiss, that 

establishes that Smith intentionally had individuals “kicked out” of thrifting events to “take them 

down”.  Defendants’ statements far exceed the scope of opinion testimony and are not protected 

as free speech. The statements published on Defendants’ social media accounts are a false and 

malicious attack against Smith trade, business, and professional reputation.  Smith was emotionally 

as well as financially damaged as a result of this public humiliation, false accusations regarding 

an alleged criminal history of restraining orders, and attack on his business reputation and his 

character. A reasonable jury could find, given the entire context of Defendants’ statements, the 

history between the parties, and Defendants’ clear vendetta against Smith and their scheme to get 

supporters to help them ruin Smith and his career, that said statements are defamation per se. 

2. Conspiracy.  

Nevada defines a civil conspiracy as “a combination of two or more persons, who by some 

concerted action, intend to accomplish some unlawful objective for the purpose of harming another 

which results in damage.” Collins v. Union Fed. Sav. & Loan Ass'n, 662 P.2d 610, 622 (Nev. 

1983); see also Ungaro v. Desert Palace, 732 F.Supp. 1522, 1532 n.3 (D. Nev. 1989). “By 

participating in a civil conspiracy, a coconspirator effectively adopts as his or her own the torts of 

other coconspirators within the ambit of the conspiracy. In this way, a coconspirator incurs tort 
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liability co-equal with the immediate tortfeasors.” Applied Equip. Corp. v. Litton Saudi Arabia 

Ltd., 869 P.2d 454, 457 (Cal. 1994). “A civil conspiracy claim operates to extend, beyond the 

active wrongdoer, liability in tort to actors who have merely assisted, encouraged, or planned the 

wrongdoer's acts.” Wyatt v. Union Mortgage Co., 598 P.2d 45, 51 (Cal. 1979) (“The effect of 

charging ... conspiratorial conduct is to implicate all . . . who agree to the plan to commit the wrong 

as well as those who actually carry it out.”) (citations omitted). 

To state a valid claim for civil conspiracy, a plaintiff must show: (1) defendants, by acting 

in concert, intended to accomplish an unlawful objective for the purpose of harming the plaintiff; 

and (2) the plaintiff sustained damages as a result. See Hilton Hotels Corp. v. Butch Lewis Prods., 

Inc., 862 P.2d 1207, 1210 (Nev. 1993) (citations omitted). 

Here, the evidence clearly establishes that Defendants acted in concert, by both posting and 

endorsing, false and defamatory statements about Smith for the purpose of harming his business 

and his reputation in the thrifting world, a world that Defendants are just now up and coming in 

and seeking to profit in. It is to their advantage if Smith’s reputation is damages and his business 

is destroyed.  The facts in this matter, including the relationship between Defendants, their prior 

relationship and history with Smith, their clear vendetta against Smith, and their personal gain 

from harming Smith, clearly establishes the elements necessary to support a claim for conspiracy.  

3. Preliminary and Permanent Injunction. 

It is clear here that immediate and irreparable injury will result to Smith unless this Court 

enters an injunction, pursuant to NRCP 65.  Defendants’ actions in posting the defamatory 

statements are causing irreparable harm to Plaintiff because such false statements regarding a 

history of restraining orders and false statements that Smith intentional “takes people down” 

continues cause severe and irreparable harm and injury to Smith’s goodwill, reputation, and his 

business. As a result of the irreparable harm, Plaintiff has no adequate remedy at law.  

Thereby, if arguendo this Court finds that the anti-SLAPP statute is applicable in this 

matter, which Smith contends it’s not, Smith has met his burden by establishing that he is likely to 

prevail on his claims for both defamation per se, conspiracy, and preliminary and permanent 
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injunction. Therefore, Defendants’ Motion to Dismiss must be denied.  

D. Public Policy Requires That This Matter Be Decided on Its Merits and Further 
Discovery is Necessary in This Matter. 
Pleadings are to be construed liberally and place into issue matters which are fairly noticed 

to the adverse party. Langevin v. York, 111 Nev. 1481 (1985); Nevada State Bank v. Jamison 

Family Partnership, 106 Nev. 792 (1990); Hay v. Hay. 100 Nev. 196, 198 (1984).  Dismissal of 

an action is “a harsh remedy to be utilized only in extreme situations.”  Moore v. Cherry, 90 Nev. 

390, 393 (1974). The decision to dismiss an action for any reason must be balanced against the 

strong public policy in favor of resolving issues on the merits. Spiegelman v. Gold Dust Texaco. 

91 Nev, 542, 545 (1973). The discretion to be exercised under the circumstances of a particular 

case is a legal discretion, to be exercised in conformity with the spirit of the law and in such a 

manner as to subserve and not to impede or to defeat the ends of substantial justice. Id. The spirit 

of the law is that matters be heard on their merits; where a case is presently being prosecuted with 

diligence, it serves the interests of justice that the matter be presented to the trier of fact. Id.  

Moreover, there has been no discovery conducted by Defendants in this matter to verify 

any of the facts or alleged evidence presented in this matter.  The veracity and reliability of this 

evidence is not established and is disputed here, as Smith has not had the opportunity for any cross-

examination of statements from third-party witnesses or verify that posts and text message threads 

used to support the Motion to Dismiss are no edited or varied in any way.  Thereby, this Court 

should allow this case to move forward, allow discovery to take place, and allow this case to be 

heard on the merits, as it should.   

E. Smith is Entitled to Attorney’s Fees, Costs, and a Statutory Award from Defendant.  

Defendant’s request for attorneys’ fees, costs, and/or a statutory award from Plaintiffs 

should be denied, as Defendants have failed to meet their burden of proof under NRS proof under 

NRS 41.660 as necessary to be successful in their Motion to Dismiss, as set forth and established 

herein.    

However, NRS 41.670(2) provides that “[i]f the court denies a special motion to dismiss 

filed pursuant to NRS 41.660 and finds that the motion was frivolous or vexatious, the court shall 
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award to the prevailing party reasonable costs and attorney's fees incurred in responding to the 

motion.” Further, NRS 41.670(3) reads “[i]n additional to reasonable costs and attorney's fees 

awarded pursuant to subsection 2, the court may award (a) An amount of up to $10,000; and (b) 

Any such additional relief as the court deems proper to punish and deter the filing of frivolous or 

vexatious motions.” 

As set forth herein, Defendants filed their Motion to Dismiss with no basis for doing so, as 

they had clear knowledge of the falsity of their statements, and such statements were made to 

further bolster private animosity and dispute between the parties, not a matter of public interest. 

IV. CONCLUSION 

Based on the foregoing, Smith respectfully requests that the Court deny Defendants' 

Special Motion to Dismiss in its entirety as Defendants have failed to meet their burden of 

persuasion under NRS 41.660, and even if the Court arguendo finds that the NRS 41.660 applies 

in this matter, Smith has met his burden of establishing that he likely to prevail on his claims for 

defamation per se, conspiracy, and injunction.  Moreover, this case should be heard on its merit 

and allowed to move forward.  Smith also respectfully request that this Court deny Defendants’ 

requests for costs and fees and award Smith costs and fees for having to respond to Defendants’ 

baseless Motion to Dismiss.  

Dated this 20th day of September 2019. 

HOLLEY DRIGGS WALCH 
FINE PUZEY STEIN & THOMPSON 
 
/s/Kimberly P. Stein  
BRIAN W. BOSCHEE, ESQ.  
Nevada Bar No. 7612 
KIMBERLY P. STEIN, ESQ. 
Nevada Bar No. 8495 
MIKKAELA VELLIS, ESQ. 
Nevada Bar No. 14294 
400 South Fourth Street, Third Floor 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101 
Attorneys for Plaintiff  
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I hereby certify that a true copy of the PLAINTIFF’S OPPOSITION TO 

DEFENDANTS’ SPECIAL MOTION TO DISMISS PURSUANT TO NEV. REV. STAT. § 

41.660 (ANTI-SLAPP) was served in accordance with Administrative Order 14-2, this 20th day 

of September, 2019, addressed to the following: 

Margaret A. McLetchie, Esq. 
Alina M. Shell, Esq. 
Leo S. Wolpert, Esq. 
McLetchie Law 
701 E. Bridger, Avenue, Suite 520 
Las Vegas, NV 89101  
E-mail:  maggie@lvlitigation.com 
Attorneys for Defendants 
Katy Zilverberg and Victoria Eagan 
 

 /s/Andi Hughes     
An employee of Holley Driggs Walch 
Fine Puzey Stein & Thompson 
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HOLLEY DRIGGS WALCH
FINE PUZEY STEIN & THOMPSON
BRIAN W. BOSCHEE, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 7612
KIMBERLY P. STEIN, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 8675
E-mail: kstein@nevadafirm.com
MIKKAELA N. VELLIS, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 14294
E-mail: mvellis@nevadafirm.com
400 S. Fourth Street, Third Floor
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
Telephone: (702) 791-0308
Attorneys for Plaintiff

DISTRICT COURT

COUNTY OF CLARK, NEVADA
JASON T. SMITH, an individual

Plaintiff,
Case No.: A-19-798171-C
Dept. No.: XIV

vs.

KATY ZILVERBERG, an individual;
VICTORIA EAGAN, an individual; and DOES I
through X, inclusive, and ROE
CORPORATIONS I though X, inclusive,

Defendant(s).

DECLARATION OF JASON T. SMITH IN
SUPPORT OF PLAINTIFF'S
OPPOSITION TO DEFENDANTS'
SPECIAL MOTION TO DISMISS
PURSUANT TO NEV. REV. STAT. §
41.660 (ANTI-SLAPP)

I, Jason T. Smith, hereby declare under penalty of perjury as follows:

1. I am the Plaintiff in the above-captioned matter. I am over the age of eighteen (18)

years and competent to testify to the matters set forth herein.

2. I am submitting this Declaration in support of Plaintiff's Opposition to Defendants'

Special Motion to Dismiss Pursuant to Nev. Rev. Stat. § 41.660 (ANTI-SLAPP).

3. I make this Declaration based on my personal knowledge of the facts and matters

in this action.

4. I have been along-time and well-known member of the thrifting community, a

community of individuals who buy and sell used goods online.

/ //
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16. As a result, Defendants developed animosity and personal spite towards me, and

Defendants tried to turn many of my friends against me.

17. Since then I have distanced myself from Defendants and cut off all relations with

~ them.

18. It was soon thereafter that Defendants began a campaign against me to injure my

business and smear my reputation in the larger public thrifting community and with our inner circle

of friends, many of whom are also part of the thrifting community,

19. Upon information and belief, Defendants are now engaged.

20. I am aware that Defendants are also in the process of trying to grow their businesses

in the thrifting community, much of which is done through their online presence in the community

and the YouTube video channel. I am one of Defendants' top competitors.

21. On or about June 14, 2018, Zilverberg posted a video on YouTube entitled "Jason

T Smith is an abusive bully" (the "YouTube Video"), wherein Zilverberg goes on an approximately

33-minute rant about me.

22. Throughout the entire video, Zilverberg calls me names and also makes numerous

false .statements that I have and will try to "take people down." This is not true.

23. Zilverberg also falsely states that I have, and will, intentionally get people thrown

out of various business events, again to allegedly "take people down". This is not true.

24. These statements made by Zilverberg falsely infer, among other things, that I am

predatory and harass people, which is untrue and has a severe effect on my reputation and has

damaged my business.

25. Defendants are aware that the YouTube video is still posted by other users online

~ and have made no effort to have the YouTube video removed.

26. On or about April 25, 2019, Eagan posted statements on her Facebook that I have

multiple restraining orders against me. This post was endorsed by Zilverberg. This is not true.

27. Defendants have falsely alleged to the public that I have a criminal record of

restraining orders and a verified history of harassment, which I do not.
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28. These statements have had and continue to have a severe impact on my reputation

and business in the community.

29. I have never had any restraining orders against me.

30. I have reviewed the background report of a "Jason Todd Smith" attached to

Defendants' Motion to Dismiss, as E~ibit 16; however, the majority of the criminal charges

contained therein are not connected in any way to me. The documents produced include criminal

charges of an individual entirely unrelated to me.

31. I previously lived in Ohio, but since September 2000, I have only ever lived in

California and Nevada, and a majority of the criminal charges, including misdemeanors and felony

charges, take place in Ohio after September 2000. I was no longer residing in Ohio at the time

these alleged charges occurred. These charges are not related to me.

32. I admit that many of the traffic violations prior to the year 2000 contained in the

background report are mine.

33. The charges also notably include, among other charges, a "minor in possession"

and "carrying a concealed weapon" in 2006 — in 2006 I was 35 years old, residing in Nevada, and

I have never owned a gun in my life.

34. These charges, except for the traffic violations that I admit are mine, are clearly

unrelated to me, yet Defendants continue to injure my reputation by now associating my name with

additional false charges in a public Court document.

35. None of the charges included in the background report produced by Defendants

include any restraining orders.

36. Defendants' false statements about me are fueled by a private dispute with me and

a subsequent vendetta to injure me and my reputation.

37. Defendants are trying to build their business in the thrifting community and also

benefit and gain advantage if my reputation, as a top thrifter and well-known success in the

~ community, is ruined and my business is destroyed.
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38. I believe Defendants are also capitalizing by using my brand name and creating

controversy surrounding my name to bring viewers to their online social media and YouTube

channel.

39. Defendants posted the false statements about me to publicize a private dispute,

resulting from a failed friendship and subsequent hand feelings; gazn supporters in the community;

harm my brand name and reputation; and capitalize their business.

I declare under pen~.lty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct and that this

Declaration was executed on the ~f..) day of September 2019.

~:;.~.

Jason T. Smith

_ ~_
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HOLLEY DRIGGS WALCH 
FINE PUZEY STEIN & THOMPSON 
BRIAN W. BOSCHEE, ESQ.  
Nevada Bar No. 7612 
KIMBERLY P. STEIN, ESQ. 
Nevada Bar No. 8675 
E-mail: kstein@nevadafirm.com 
MIKKAELA N. VELLIS, ESQ. 
Nevada Bar No. 14294 
E-mail: mvellis@nevadafirm.com 
400 S. Fourth Street, Third Floor 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101 
Telephone: (702) 791-0308  
Attorneys for Plaintiff  
 

DISTRICT COURT 

COUNTY OF CLARK, NEVADA 
JASON T. SMITH, an individual 
 
  Plaintiff, 
vs. 
 
KATY ZILVERBERG, an individual; 
VICTORIA EAGAN, an individual; and DOES I 
through X, inclusive, and ROE 
CORPORATIONS I though X, inclusive, 
 

Defendant(s). 
 

Case No.: A-19-798171-C 
Dept. No.: XXIV 
 
ERRATA TO PLAINTIFF’S OPPOSITION 
TO DEFENDANTS’ SPECIAL MOTION 
TO DISMISS PURSUANT TO NEV. REV. 
STAT. § 41.660 (ANTI-SLAPP)  

  

Plaintiff Jason T. Smith (“Plaintiff” or “Smith”), an individual, by and through counsel of 

record, the law firm of Holley Driggs Walch Fine Puzey Stein & Thompson, hereby files his Errata 

to Plaintiff’s Opposition to Defendants’ Special Motion to Dismiss Pursuant to Nev. Rev. Stat. 

§ 41.660 (ANTI-SLAPP) filed in this matter September 20, 2019 (hereinafter “Plaintiff’s 

Opposition”).   

 Plaintiff recently discovered that page 2 to Exhibit 1 to Plaintiff’s Opposition, the 

Declaration of Jason T. Smith in Support of Plaintiff’s Opposition (containing paragraphs 5-15) 

was inadvertently left out when it was scanned and filed with the Court. 

Case Number: A-19-798171-C

Electronically Filed
9/23/2019 11:36 AM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT
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The missing page from Plaintiff’s Opposition was entirely inadvertent and only recently 

discovered and thus being corrected immediately with this Errata being filed forthwith.   

Plaintiff therefore respectfully requests that this Court accept this Errata and correct 

Exhibit 1 to Plaintiff’s Opposition to add page 2. 

 

Dated this 23rd day of September 2019. 
HOLLEY DRIGGS WALCH 
FINE PUZEY STEIN & THOMPSON 
 
 

/s/Kimberly P. Stein  
KIMBERLY P. STEIN, ESQ. 
Nevada Bar No. 8495 
MIKKAELA VELLIS, ESQ. 
Nevada Bar No. 14294 
400 South Fourth Street, Third Floor 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101 
 
Attorneys for Plaintiff   
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I hereby certify that a true copy of the ERRATA TO PLAINTIFF’S OPPOSITION 

TO DEFENDANTS’ SPECIAL MOTION TO DISMISS PURSUANT TO NEV. REV. 

STAT. § 41.660 (ANTI-SLAPP) was served in accordance with Administrative Order 14-

2, this 23rd day of September, 2019, addressed to the following: 

 
Margaret A. McLetchie, Esq. 
Alina M. Shell, Esq. 
Leo S. Wolpert, Esq. 
McLetchie Law 
701 E. Bridger, Avenue, Suite 520 
Las Vegas, NV 89101  
E-mail:  maggie@lvlitigation.com 
 
Attorneys for Defendants 
Katy Zilverberg and Victoria Eagan 

 
 /s/Andi Hughes     
An employee of Holley Driggs Walch 
Fine Puzey Stein & Thompson 
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HOLLEY DRIGGS WALCH
FINE PUZEY STEIN & THOMPSON
BRIAN W. BOSCHEE, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 7612
KIMBERLY P. STEIN, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 8675
E-mail: kstein@nevadafirm.com
MIKKAELA N. VELLIS, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 14294
E-mail: mvellis@nevadafirm.com
400 S. Fourth Street, Third Floor
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
Telephone: (702) 791-0308
Attorneys for Plaintiff

DISTRICT COURT

COUNTY OF CL.
JASON T. SMITH, an individual

Plaintiff,

ARK, NEVADA

Case No.: A-19-798171-C
Dept. No.: XIV

vs.

KATY ZILVERBERG, an individual;
VICTORIA EAGAN, an individual; and DOES I
through X, inclusive, and ROE
CORPORATIONS I though X, inclusive,

Defendant(s).

DECLARATION OF JASON T. SMITH IN
SUPPORT OF PLAINTIFF'S
OPPOSITION TO DEFENDANTS'
SPECIAL MOTION TO DISMISS
PURSUANT TO NEV. REV. STAT. §
41.660 (ANTI-SLAPP)

I, Jason T. Smith, hereby declare under penalty of perjury as follows:

1. I am the Plaintiff in the above-captioned matter. I am over the age of eighteen (18)

years and competent to testify to the matters set forth herein.

2. I am submitting this Declaration in support of Plaintiff's Opposition to Defendants'

Special Motion to Dismiss Pursuant to Nev. Rev. Stat. § 41.660 (ANTI-SLAPP).

3. I make this Declaration based on my personal knowledge of the facts and matters

~ in this action.

4. I have been along-time and well-known member of the thrifting community, a

community of individuals who buy and sell used goods online.

/ //
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5. Over the years, I have built my reputation in the thrifting community and have

established a highly successful business doing so.

6. My business is based on my well-known brand name and reputation as a

knowledgeable and successful thrifter.

7. I am considered an expert in the thrifting community and many individuals seek

advice and expertise from me relating to thrifting and buying and selling online, which is a lucrative

and necessary part of my successful business.

8. Defendant Victoria Eagan ("Eagan") and Defendant Katy Zilverberg ("Zilverberg"

collectively with Eagan, "Defendants") are also a part of the thrifting community.

9. I have known the Defendants for many years now.

10. I was friends with Eagan prior to Eagan ever meeting Zilverberg and prior to Eagan

ever being involved in the Facebook thrifting community. I was the person to introduce Eagan into

the Facebook thrifting community.

11. Prior to Zilverberg meeting Eagan, Zilverberg was an administrator in my

Facebook group, which has thousands of followers and supporters from the thrifting community.

12. I was supportive of Zilverberg and her career in the thrifting community. I

personally helped Zilverberg gain supporters and rallied my Facebook group to vote for Zilverberg

which led her to winning the Shine Award, a prestigious award given to members of the thrifting

community each year at the annual eBay Open conference. As a result, Zilverberg became well-

known and established a successful business in the thrifting community.

13. I previously became aware that Eagan and Zilverberg eventually began a

relationship, and Eagan informed me that she was going to leave her husband to continue a

relationship with Zilverberg.

14. At that time, I was also friends with Eagan's now ex-husband and was surprised at

the news of Eagan and Zilverberg's relationship.

15. Eagan and Zilverberg became upset that I did not fully support their relationship,

which was solely a result of the fact that I was previously friends with Eagan and her husband.

-2-
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16. As a result, Defendants developed animosity and personal spite towards me, and

Defendants tried to turn many of my friends against me.

17. Since then I have distanced myself from Defendants and cut off all relations with

them.

18. It was soon thereafter that Defendants began a campaign against me to injure my

business and smear my reputation in the larger public thrifting community and with our inner circle

of friends, many of whom are also part of the thrifting community,

19. Upon information and belief, Defendants are now engaged.

20. I am aware that Defendants are also in the process of trying to grow their businesses

in the thrifting community, much of which is done through their online presence in the community

and the YouTube video channel. I am one of Defendants' top competitors.

21. On or about June 14, 2018, Zilverberg posted a video on YouTube entitled "Jason

T Smith is an abusive bully" (the "YouTube Video"), wherein Zilverberg goes on an approximately

33-minute rant about me.

22. Throughout the entire video, Zilverberg calls me names and also makes numerous

false statements that I have and will try to "take people down." This is not true.

23. Zilverberg also falsely states that I have, and will, intentionally get people thrown

out of various business events, again to allegedly "take people down". This is not true.

24. These statements made by Zilverberg falsely infer, among other things, that I am

predatory and harass people, which is untrue and has a severe effect on my reputation and has

damaged my business.

25. Defendants are aware that the YouTube video is still posted by other users online

and have made no effort to have the YouTube video removed.

26. On or about April 25, 2019, Eagan posted statements on her Facebook that I have

multiple restraining orders against me. This post was endorsed by Zilverberg. This is not true.

27. Defendants have falsely alleged to the public that I have a criminal record of

restraining orders and a verified history of harassment, which I do not.
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28. These statements have had and continue to have a severe impact on my reputation

and business in the community.

29. I have never had any restraining orders against me.

30. I have reviewed the background report of a "Jason Todd Smith" attached to

Defendants' Motion to Dismiss, as Exhibit 16; however, the majority of the criminal charges

contained therein are not connected in any way to me. The documents produced include criminal

charges of an individual entirely unrelated to me.

31. I previously lived in Ohio, but since September 2000, I have only ever lived in

California and Nevada, and a majority of the criminal charges, including misdemeanors and felony

charges, take place in Ohio after September 2000. I was no longer residing in Ohio at the time

these alleged charges occurred. These charges are not related to me.

32. I admit that many of the traffic violations prior to the year 2000 contained in the

background report are mine.

33. The charges also notably include, among other charges, a "minor in possession"

and "carrying a concealed weapon" in 2006 — in 2006 I was 35 years old, residing in Nevada, and

~ I have never owned a gun in my life.

34. These charges, except for the traffic violations that I admit are mine, are clearly

unrelated to me, yet Defendants continue to injure my reputation by now associating my name with

additional false charges in a public Court document.

35. None of the charges included in the .background report produced by Defendants

include any restraining orders.

36. Defendants' false statements about me are fueled by a private dispute with me and

a subsequent vendetta to injure me and my reputation.

37. Defendants are trying to build their business in the thrifting community and also

benefit and gain advantage if my reputation, as a top thrifter and well-known success in the

~ community, is ruined and my business is destroyed.
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38. I believe Defendants are also capitalizing by using my brand name and creating

controversy surrounding my name to bring viewers to their online social media and YouTube

channel.

39. Defendants posted the false statements about me to publicize a private dispute,

resulting from a failed friendship and subsequent hard feelings; gain supporters in the community;

harm my brand name and reptrtation; and capitalize their business.

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is due and correct and that tbds

Declaration was executed on the ~C) day of September 2019.

s,

Jason T. Smith
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RIS 
MARGARET A. MCLETCHIE, Nevada Bar No. 10931 
ALINA M. SHELL, Nevada Bar No. 11711 
LEO S. WOLPERT, Nevada Bar No. 12658 
MCLETCHIE LAW 
701 E. Bridger Avenue, Suite 520 
Las Vegas, NV 89101 
Telephone: (702) 728-5300; Fax (702) 425-8220 
Email: maggie@nvlitigation.com 
Counsel for Defendants Katy Zilverberg 
and Victoria Eagan 
 

EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT 

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 

JASON T. SMITH, an individual, 
  
                         Plaintiff, 
vs. 

KATY ZILVERBERG, an individual; 
VICTORIA EAGAN, an individual; and 
DOES I through X, inclusive, and ROE 
CORPORATIONS I through X, inclusive,  
 
                         Defendants. 

Case No.: A-19-798171-C 

Dept. No.: XXIV 

REPLY IN SUPPORT OF NOTICE 
OF NON-OPPOSITION AND 
OPPOSITION TO COUNTER-
MOTION TO STRIKE NOTICE 
OF NON-OPPOSITION TO 
SPECIAL MOTION TO DISMISS 
PURSUANT TO NEV. REV. STAT. 
§ 41.660 (ANTI-SLAPP)  

Defendants Katy Zilverberg and Victoria Eagan hereby reply to and oppose 

Plaintiff Jason T. Smith’s Opposition and Countermotion to Strike (the “Countermotion”) 

Defendants’ Notice of Non-Opposition to Defendants’ Special Motion to Dismiss Plaintiff’s 

Complaint Pursuant to Nev. Rev. Stat. § 41.660 (the “Notice”).  

Dated this the 26th day of September, 2019. 
 

/s/ Margaret A. McLetchie  
MARGARET A. MCLETCHIE, Nevada Bar No. 10931 
ALINA M. SHELL, Nevada Bar No. 11711 
LEO S. WOLPERT, Nevada Bar No. 12658 
MCLETCHIE LAW 
Counsel for Defendants Katy Zilverberg 
and Victoria Eagan 

Case Number: A-19-798171-C

Electronically Filed
9/26/2019 5:50 PM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT
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MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES 

I. INTRODUCTION 

On September 19, 2019, Ms. Zilverberg and Ms. Eagan filed the Notice making 

clear that Mr. Smith failed to timely file an opposition to their Anti-SLAPP Motion to 

Dismiss. In his Countermotion, Mr. Smith’s misapplies the law in arguing that that he did 

not miss the deadline to oppose the Anti-SLAPP Motion, as detailed below. While Mr. Smith 

did eventually file his Opposition to the Anti-SLAPP Motion to Dismiss, he did not do so 

until September 20, 2019, four days after the deadline. Preferring to remain steadfast in his 

misapplication of the rules, Mr. Smith has never sought an extension pursuant to EDCR 2.25 

or other relief from deadlines. Accordingly, Mr. Smith’s Opposition to the Anti-SLAPP 

Motion to Dismiss is not properly before the Court. It should not be considered and Mr. 

Smith’s Countermotion to Strike must be denied. 

II. ARGUMENT 

A. No Timely Non-Opposition Was Filed. 

The Notice fully memorializes that Mr. Smith failed to comply with the deadlines 

set forth by the Nevada Rules of Civil Procedure, the Eighth Judicial District Court Rules, 

and Administrative Order 19-03. As detailed therein, the Eighth Judicial District Court Rules 

mandate that “within 10 days after service of [a] motion … the opposing party must serve 

and file written notice of nonopposition or opposition thereto….” EDCR 2.20(e) (emphasis 

added). The Anti-SLAPP Motion to Dismiss was filed and served on September 6, 2019. 

Under NRCP 6(a)(1)—which mandates that Saturdays, Sundays and legal holidays are 

included in computing deadlines—the deadline for opposing the Anti-SLAPP motion to 

dismiss was September 16, 2019.1 A full three days after the deadline, on September 19, 

2019, Defendants filed the Notice of Non-Opposition, properly alerting the Court that, 

because no opposition was filed, this Court may construe failure of an opposing party to 

 
1 Although EDCR 1.14(a) excludes Saturdays, Sundays, and non-judicial days from the 
computation of time, that rule was suspended on March 12, 2019 pursuant to Administrative 
Order 19-03 to comply with the revisions to the Nevada Rules of Civil Procedure. 
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serve and file written opposition “as an admission that the motion … is meritorious and a 

consent to granting the same.” EDCR 2.20(e); 

In his Countermotion, Mr. Smith claims that “NRCP 6(a) provides that ‘…time 

periods between 6 and 15 days are now set to 14 days…’” NRCP 6(a) does not provide as 

such—rather, the advisory committee notes to NRCP 6(a) provides that “In general … time 

periods between 6 and 15 days are now set to 14 days.” NRCP 6(a) advisory committee’s 

note (emphasis added). However, while omitted by Mr. Smith, that same advisory committee 

note goes on to warn: “Statutory-and rule-based time periods subject to this rule”—such as 

the time periods set forth in EDCR 2.20—“may not be changed concurrently with this rule.” 

Id.  

Mr. Smith’s misinterpretation of the Court’s explicit notice regarding the 

computation of time does not exempt him from meeting deadlines for serving and filing 

oppositions. This Court can, and should, construe Mr. Smith’s failure to timely serve and file 

written opposition “as an admission that the motion … is meritorious and a consent to 

granting the same.” EDCR 2.20(e). This is especially so in light of the tight timeline on which 

Anti-SLAPP motions must be adjudicated (see Nev. Rev. Stat. 41.660(3)(f)) and Mr. Smith’s 

refusal to seek an extension. 

B. The Countermotion Must Be Denied. 

Rather than address his own failure to timely file his Opposition, in his 

Countermotion, Mr. Smith moved this Court to disregard and strike the Notice of Non-

Opposition. (Opp., p. 2:16.) This Court should decline to do so because Mr. Smith does not 

meet the legal standard for a Motion to Strike. The Nevada Rules of Civil Procedure provide 

that “the court may order stricken from any pleading any insufficient defense or any 

redundant, immaterial, impertinent, or scandalous matter.” Nev. R. Civ. P. 12(f) (emphasis 

added). Pleadings are specifically enumerated in Nev. R. Civ. P. 7(a)—notices of a 

nonmoving party’s failure to oppose a motion do not appear in that list. Thus, this Court 

cannot strike Defendants’ Notice of Non-Opposition pursuant to Nev. R. Civ. P. 12(f) 

because it is not a pleading. Even if Mr. Smith were moving this Court to strike Defendants’ 
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Notice of Non-Opposition pursuant to its inherent authority to manage its docket, this Court 

should decline to exercise said authority in striking the Notice of Non-Opposition.  

As detailed above, the Notice of Non-Opposition correctly memorializes that Mr. 

Smith failed to comply with the deadlines set forth by the Nevada Rules of Civil Procedure, 

the Eighth Judicial District Court Rules, and Administrative Order 19-03. The Court should 

in fact not consider the untimely Opposition to the Motion to Dismiss, which was not filed 

until four business days after the deadline. Again, in light of the strict timelines applicable in 

this Anti-SLAPP proceeding, it is especially problematic that Plaintiff failed to follow the 

rules, shortening the time for Defendants to file their Reply2 and the time available for the 

Court to review the briefs. Thus, as noted above, this Court should not even consider the 

Non-Opposition. Even if the Court ultimately declines to exercise said authority, there was 

nothing immaterial, impertinent or scandalous about Defendants notifying the Court of Mr. 

Smith’s lack of timely opposition.  

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

 
2 EDCR 2.20 (h) provides that “[a] moving party may file a reply memorandum of points and 
authorities not later than 5 days before the matter is set for hearing.” As noted above, EDCR 
1.14(a)-(c) has been suspended and, thus, the deadline for Defendants to file a reply is 
nominally Saturday, September 28, 2019, which is 5 days before the October 3, 2019 hearing 
on Defendants’ Anti-SLAPP Motion to Dismiss. Because the “last day” of this 5-day time 
period is a Saturday, the 5-day period “continues to run until the end of the next day that is 
not a Saturday.” Nev. R. Civ. P. 6(a)(1)(C). Because the time period is being measured before 
an event, the “next day” is determined by continuing to count backward. Nev. R. Civ. P. 
6(a)(5). Thus, Defendants’ deadline to file a reply is Friday, September 27, 2019. It is being 
filed a day early to ensure the Court has ample time to review. Because the Opposition to the 
Anti-SLAPP Motion was filed late, Defendants only had 6, rather than 10, days to get a reply 
on file. 
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III. CONCLUSION 

For all these reasons and for those set forth in the Notice, this Court should not 

consider the untimely Opposition to the Anti-SLAPP Motion and should deny Mr. Smith’s 

Countermotion to Strike. 

Respectfully submitted this 26th day of September, 2019. 
 
/s/ Margaret A. McLetchie      
MARGARET A. MCLETCHIE, Nevada Bar No. 10931 
ALINA M. SHELL, Nevada Bar No. 11711 
LEO S. WOLPERT, Nevada Bar No. 12658 
MCLETCHIE LAW 
701 E. Bridger Avenue, Suite 520 
Las Vegas, NV 89101 
Telephone: (702) 728-5300; Fax (702) 425-8220 
Email: maggie@nvlitigation.com 
Counsel for Defendants Katy Zilverberg 
and Victoria Eagan 
 
 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

Pursuant to Administrative Order 14-2 and N.E.F.C.R. 9, I hereby certify that on 

this 26th day of September, 2019, I did cause a true copy of the foregoing REPLY IN 

SUPPORT OF NOTICE OF NON-OPPOSITION AND OPPOSITION TO COUNTER-

MOTION TO STRIKE NOTICE OF NON-OPPOSITION TO SPECIAL MOTION TO 

DISMISS PURSUANT TO NEV. REV. STAT. § 41.660 (ANTI-SLAPP) in Smith v. 

Zilverberg et al., Clark County District Court Case No. A-19-798171-C, to be served using 

the Odyssey E-File & Serve electronic court filing system, to all parties with an email address 

on record. 
 

       /s/ Pharan Burchfield        
      EMPLOYEE of McLetchie Law 

 

256



 

i 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

 
A

T
T

O
R

N
E

Y
S 

A
T 

LA
W

 
70

1 
EA

ST
 B

R
ID

G
ER

 A
V

E.
, S

U
IT

E 
52

0 
LA

S 
V

EG
A

S,
 N

V
 8

91
01

 
(7

02
)7

28
-5

30
0 

(T
) /

 (7
02

)4
25

-8
22

0 
(F

) 
W

W
W

.N
V

LI
TI

G
A

TI
O

N
.C

O
M

 
 

RIS 
MARGARET A. MCLETCHIE, Nevada Bar No. 10931 
ALINA M. SHELL, Nevada Bar No. 11711 
LEO S. WOLPERT, Nevada Bar No. 12658 
MCLETCHIE LAW 
701 E. Bridger Avenue, Suite 520 
Las Vegas, NV 89101 
Telephone: (702) 728-5300; Fax (702) 425-8220 
Email: maggie@nvlitigation.com 
Counsel for Defendants Katy Zilverberg 
and Victoria Eagan 
 

EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT 

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 

JASON T. SMITH, an individual, 
  
                         Plaintiff, 
vs. 

KATY ZILVERBERG, an individual; 
VICTORIA EAGAN, an individual; and 
DOES I through X, inclusive, and ROE 
CORPORATIONS I through X, inclusive,  
 
                         Defendants. 

Case No.: A-19-798171-C 

Dept. No.: XXIV 

REPLY IN SUPPORT OF 
SPECIAL MOTION TO DISMISS 
PURSUANT TO NEV. REV. STAT. 
§ 41.660 (ANTI-SLAPP) 
 
Hearing Date: October 3, 2019 
Hearing Time: 9:00 a.m. 

Defendants Katy Zilverberg and Victoria Eagan hereby reply to Plaintiff Jason T. 

Smith’s Response in Opposition to Defendants’ Special Motion to Dismiss Plaintiff’s 

complaint pursuant to Nev. Rev. Stat. § 41.660. This reply is based on the following 

Memorandum of Points and Authorities and exhibits attached thereto, the papers and 

pleadings already on file herein, and any oral argument the Court may permit at the hearing 

of this Motion. 

Dated this the 27th day of September, 2019. 
 

/s/ Margaret A. McLetchie   
MARGARET A. MCLETCHIE, Nevada Bar No. 10931 
ALINA M. SHELL, Nevada Bar No. 11711 
LEO S. WOLPERT, Nevada Bar No. 12658 
MCLETCHIE LAW 
Counsel for Defendants Katy Zilverberg 
and Victoria Eagan  

Case Number: A-19-798171-C

Electronically Filed
9/27/2019 8:32 AM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT
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MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES 

I.          INTRODUCTION 

In this case based on exposure of his bullying of women in his business community, 

Plaintiff Jason Todd Smith dares to argue that the Defendants’ anti-SLAPP Motion to 

Dismiss is full of “histrionics.” (Opp., p. 3:1.) Besides being offensive, this is an effort to 

distract from Mr. Smith’s inability to oppose the Motion on a substantive level. What is 

overblown and “histrionic” are Mr. Smith’s own legal claims and arguments, none of which 

are cognizable. Now, in his untimely-filed Opposition,1 Mr. Smith does not bother to refute 

the strong evidentiary and legal showing Defendants made in their Motion, which establish 

that their communications are entitled to anti-SLAPP protection and that Mr. Smith cannot 

meet his burden of establishing with prima facie evidence any probability of prevailing on 

his causes of action. Instead, Mr. Smith’s opposition relies on irrelevant, unsupported 

distractions, and a hyperbolic but empty argument that the Motion is an effort to “destroy 

well settled Nevada law and turn Tort law in the United States upside down.” (Opp., p. 2:25-

26.) In fact, granting Defendants’ Motion would vindicate a core principle underlying both 

First Amendment jurisprudence and anti-SLAPP law: a famous public figure and business 

leader cannot misuse the courts to squelch criticism of his behavior. 

While Mr. Smith tries to spin this dispute as a private matter, his own allegations 

and argument belie that spin: he also argues that the statements made by Defendants were 

made in an effort to steal business from him. Neither is true. Defendants’ decision to speak 

out against Mr. Smith was based on a desire to stand up to a man who, as the evidence 

provided with the Motion shows, uses his position in their business community to bully 

people and limit their ability to operate. In short, it is true that Mr. Smith has, through his 

bullying behavior, made severely negative impacts on numerous people: Ms. Eagan, Ms. 

 
1 As noted in § III(A), infra, and detailed in Defendants’ September 19, 2019 Notice of Non-
Opposition and September 26, 2019 Reply and Opposition to Mr. Smith’s Objections and 
Countermotion to Strike (on file with this Court), Mr. Smith’s Opposition was filed 4 days 
late. 
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Zilverberg, and several other members of the thrifting community who were previously 

afraid to speak up for fear of Mr. Smith’s reprisals. Mr. Smith holds a position of power and 

prestige in their shared business community, and Defendants’ efforts to shed light on his 

abusive behavior and stop bullying in their business community is squarely in the public 

interest. While it is true that they operate in the same thrifting business community, however, 

Mr. Smith’s efforts to disprove good faith by arguing that Defendants are his competitors 

also fails. As detailed below and in the attached Supplemental Declarations of Ms. Zilverberg 

and Ms. Eagan, Defendants are not in fact competitors of Mr. Smith. Instead, they each serve 

a specific niche market within the eBay thrifting/reselling community. 

In sum, Defendants have met their burden of establishing by a preponderance of the 

evidence that their communications regarding Mr. Smith were good faith communications in 

direct connection with an issue of public concern, thus satisfying the first prong of Nevada’s 

anti-SLAPP analysis. Mr. Smith has provided essentially no evidence to rebut Defendants’ 

evidence or exhibits. Furthermore, Mr. Smith has presented insufficient evidence to 

demonstrate that he has any probability of prevailing on his claims, and has thus not met his 

burden under the second prong of Nevada’s anti-SLAPP analysis. Therefore, this Court must 

grant Defendants’ special Motion to Dismiss and award fees, costs, and a statutory award to 

Defendants. 

II.          REPLY TO PLAINTIFF’S FACTUAL AND PROCEDURAL HISTORY 

Defendants have the initial burden of establishing, “by a preponderance of the 

evidence, that Mr. Smith’s claim is based upon a good faith communication in furtherance 

of the right to petition or the right to free speech in direct connection with an issue of public 

concern.” Nev. Rev. Stat. § 41.660(3)(a).  To meet this burden, Ms. Zilverberg and Ms. Eagan 

must both show that the communications at issue in the Complaint both: (a) concern an issue 

of public concern; (b) were made in a public forum; and (c) were good faith communications. 

The following key facts central to resolution of this anti-SLAPP motion are undisputed: 
• Mr. Smith is a public figure, a fact that he repeatedly emphasizes in his 

Complaint (see Compl., ¶¶ 7-12), his Opposition to Defendants’ Motion 
(see Opp., pp. 5:3-4; 7:19; 13:1), and the declaration in support of his 
Opposition; (see Exh. 1 to Opposition, ¶¶ 4-7, 37) 
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• Defendants’ communications were made in a public forum; (Motion, p. 
13:4-17) 

• Ms. Zilverberg stated in the YouTube video at issue in this matter that Mr. 
Smith tries to “take people down.” (Compl., ¶¶ 22-23.) 

Further, through their declarations and exhibits, Defendants submitted extensive evidence to 

establish that their communications concern an issue of public concern and were made in 

good faith. (See generally Motion, pp. 6:7 – 20:17; Exhs. 1 through 17 to the Motion.)  In 

his Opposition, Mr. Smith makes a vague assertion that he needs to cross-examine 

Defendants and third parties (Opp., p. 19:17-18), but he fails to object to any specific 

evidence and does not actually making a showing of why discovery is necessary. Nor has he 

requested an evidentiary hearing or produced evidence to rebut any of the evidence 

Defendants provided. 

As noted above, Mr. Smith tries to spin the dispute between the parties as a private 

matter and tries to erode the evidence of good faith submitted by Defendants by arguing that 

the statements made by Defendants were made in an effort to steal business from him. Neither 

is true. While Ms. Eagan did have short-lived friendship with Mr. Smith2 and Ms. Zilverberg  

did act as an administrator of Mr. Smith’s Facebook group,3 their decision to speak out 

against him was based not on ill will or personal animus, but on a desire to stand up to a man 

who, as the evidence provided with the Motion shows, uses his position in their business 

community to bully people and limit their ability to operate. (See Exh. 18 [supplemental 

declaration of Katy Zilverberg], ¶¶ 3, 15, 17, 21; Exh. 19 [supplemental declaration of 

Victoria Eagan], ¶¶ 3, 15-16.)  

While it is true that all parties operate in the same thrifting business community, 

Mr. Smith’s efforts to demonstrate that the complained-of statements were not good faith 

communications by arguing that Defendants are his competitors also fails. As detailed below 

and in Exhibits 18 and 19 to this Reply, Defendants are not in fact competitors; instead, they 

 
2 Said friendship ended in ended in August 2017. (Exh. 19, ¶ 17.) 
 
3 Ms. Zilverberg disclaims the notion that she and Mr. Smith were ever personal friends. 
(Exh. 18, ¶ 16.) 
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each cater to different segments of the thrifting community. For instance, there is no overlap 

between the items sold in Mr. Smith’s eBay store and the items sold in Defendants’ eBay 

stores, and thus no risk that Defendants would “steal” customers that otherwise would have 

patronized Mr. Smith’s stores. (Exh. 18, ¶¶ 3-10; Exh. 19, ¶¶ 3-10.) Likewise, there is no 

competition between Mr. Smith’s reseller educational products and groups—which he 

charges money for—and Defendants’ free-of-charge reseller educational materials. (Exh. 18, 

¶ 12; Exh. 19, ¶ 12.) Furthermore, there is no competition between Mr. Smith’s Internet video 

broadcasts and those of Defendants, which are aired at different times. (Exh. 18, ¶ 13; Exh. 

19, ¶ 13.) Indeed, Defendants view their fellow thrifters not as rivals, but as co-workers 

whose success benefits both Defendants and the thrifting community as a whole; after all, if 

Defendants viewed the thrifting community as a dog-eat-dog competition, they would not 

give away helpful knowledge and information to the community free of charge. (Exh. 18, ¶ 

11; Exh. 19, ¶ 11.) Far from being a competitor of Defendants, if Mr. Smith disappeared from 

the thrifting community tomorrow it would have no impact on Defendants’ eBay businesses 

or YouTube channel (Exh. 18, ¶ 14; Exh. 19, ¶ 14) except perhaps to eliminate the stress of 

being subjected to Mr. Smith’s bullying behavior. 

Ms. Zilverberg’s complained-of YouTube video was not posted to spite Mr. Smith, 

but rather to inform the thrifting community of Mr. Smith’s behavior when it appeared that 

the powers-that-be at companies like eBay were unwilling to step in and protect the thrifting 

community. Indeed, Ms. Zilverberg’s April 2018 interactions with Sophia Antillon, Mr. 

Smith’s former assistant, gave Defendants reason to be worried that Mr. Smith would engage 

in abusive and bullying behavior at eBay Open 2018, a major business event in the thrifting 

community. (Exh. 18, ¶ 20.) Ms. Zilverberg first chose to email Audrey Tracey of eBay 

expressing her concerns about Mr. Smith attending eBay Open 2018. (Id.) Only after it 

appeared that eBay would not do anything to help Defendants feel safe attending eBay Open 

2018 did Ms. Zilverberg post the complained-of YouTube video on June 6, 2018. (Id.)  

Ms. Zilverberg’s purpose was not to harm Mr. Smith, but rather to warn others and 

hopefully stop Mr. Smith’s anti-social behavior in the thrifting community. (Id., ¶ 21.) This 
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is why, after Brian Burke of eBay informed Ms. Zilverberg on June 8, 2018 that eBay was 

aware of the situation, Ms. Zilverberg chose to remove the complained-of YouTube video 

on June 11, 2018. (Id, ¶ 22.) Indeed, Ms. Zilverberg removed the video so that Mr. Smith 

would not be a focus of her and Ms. Eagan’s YouTube channel. (Id.) Furthermore, Ms. 

Zilverberg went out of her way to have YouTube take down copies of the complained-of 

video that were subsequently posted by third parties. (Id., ¶¶ 23-24.) Had Defendants 

intended to capitalize on Mr. Smith’s reputation (or the lowering thereof), they would not 

have gone to such great lengths to ensure that the complained-of video not be reposted on 

the Internet. Defendants’ actions demonstrate that their intent in speaking about Mr. Smith 

was not to gain a competitive advantage in business by bringing him down, but rather to warn 

the thrifting community. 

In short, Mr. Smith fails to overcome the fact that the preponderance of the evidence 

establishes that Defendants’ communications are entitled to anti-SLAPP protection. Because 

Defendants met their burden, Mr. Smith was required to provide prima facie evidence in his 

opposition to establish probability of prevailing on any claim. Nev. Rev. Stat. § 41.660(3)(b).  

Mr. Smith failed to do so, and therefore this Court must grant Defendants’ Motion. 

III.          LEGAL ARGUMENT 

A. Mr. Smith’s Untimely Opposition Should Be Construed as a Non-

Opposition. 

As argued in Defendants’ September 19, 2019 Notice of Non-Opposition (on file 

with this Court), the Eighth Judicial District Court Rules mandate that “within 10 days after 

service of [a] motion … the opposing party must serve and file written notice of 

nonopposition or opposition thereto, together with a memorandum of points and authorities 

and supporting affidavits, if any, stating facts showing why the motion and/or joinder should 

be denied.” EDCR 2.20(e). Defendants’ anti-SLAPP motion to dismiss was filed and served 

on September 6, 2019. Under Nev. R. Civ. P. 6(a)(1)—which includes Saturdays, Sundays 

and legal holidays in computing deadlines—the deadline for Mr. Smith to oppose 
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Defendants’ anti-SLAPP motion to dismiss was September 16, 2019.4 Despite this, Mr. 

Smith’s Opposition was filed four days late, on September 20, 2019.  

Mr. Smith’s misinterpretation of the Court’s explicit notice regarding the 

computation of time does not exempt him from meeting deadlines for serving and filing 

oppositions. Strict adherence to deadlines is particularly important in the context of anti-

SLAPP motions to dismiss, as they must be adjudicated within 20 judicial days. Nev. Rev. 

Stat. §41.660(3)(f). In the instant case, Mr. Smith’s dilatory filing has left this Court with 

limited time to review the briefs and evidence, and has left Defendants six, rather than ten, 

days to prepare a reply. The late filing is especially problematic since this in anti-SLAPP 

matter and must be expedited. Moreover, the problems created by the late filing were 

exacerbated by Mr. Smith’s failure to include a page of Exhibit 1 to his Opposition; Mr. 

Smith did not file an errata to correct this deficit until September 23, 2019, when Defendants’ 

counsel notified Mr. Smith’s counsel of his omission. Finally, Mr. Smith has not even 

bothered to seek an extension to excuse his late filing. In light of Mr. Smith’s unjustified 

delay and failure to adhere to procedural rules, this Court can, and should, construe Mr. 

Smith’s failure to timely serve and file written opposition “as an admission that the motion 

… is meritorious and a consent to granting the same.” EDCR 2.20(e). 

B. Defendants Satisfy the First Prong of the Anti-SLAPP Analysis. 

Mr. Smith claims that Defendants’ Motion “must be denied as Defendants cannot 

establish by a preponderance of the evidence that their claim is based upon a good faith 

communication in furtherance of the right to petition or the right to free speech in direct 

connection with an issue of public concern.” (Opp., p. 9:9-12.) Contrary to this assertion, 

Defendants do not fail “in the application of NRS 41.637(2) [sic]” (id., p. 9:12) but rather 

demonstrate, in the Motion and infra, that Mr. Smith’s lawsuit is based on their 

“[c]ommunication made in direct connection with an issue of public interest in a place open 

 
4 Although EDCR 1.14(a) excludes Saturdays, Sundays, and non-judicial days from the 
computation of time, that rule was suspended on March 12, 2019 pursuant to Administrative 
Order 19-03. 
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to the public or in a public forum which is truthful or is made without knowledge of its 

falsehood.” Nev. Rev. Stat. § 41.637(4). Therefore, Defendants have satisfied the first prong 

of Nevada’s anti-SLAPP analysis—i.e., they have “established, by a preponderance of the 

evidence, that the claim is based upon a good faith communication in furtherance of the right 

to … free speech in direct connection with an issue of public concern.” Nev. Rev. Stat. § 

41.660(3)(a). 

1. Defendants’ Statements are All Either True, Made Without 

Knowledge of Their Falsehood, or Opinions Incapable of Being True 

or False. 

As demonstrated in the Motion and below, all of Defendants’ complained-of 

communications regarding Mr. Smith are either true, were made without knowledge of their 

falsehood, or were opinions incapable of being true or false, and are therefore “good faith 

communications” under Nev. Rev. Stat. § 41.637. 

a) Statements that Mr. Smith Finds Out Where People Live 

In Order to “Take Them Down” Are Truthful or Were Made 

Without Knowledge of Falsehood. 

Mr. Smith argues that in her YouTube video, Ms. Zilverberg stated “that Smith has, 

and will, find out where people live in order to ‘take them down,’ inferring [sic] that Smith 

stalks people.” (Opp., p. 11:18-20.) Mr. Smith continues in this vein, arguing that there “is 

no evidence set forth in Defendants’ Motion to Dismiss that establishes Smith found out 

where someone lived in order to intentionally cause that person harm, because such is simply 

not true and Defendants. [sic]” (Id., p. 12:2-4 (emphasis in original).) To the contrary, 

Defendants argued (and provided ample evidence) that Mr. Smith found out a pseudonymous 

person’s address, then revealed her real name and hometown to unmask, mock and embarrass 

her in his own Facebook video. (See Motion, pp. 15:4 – 16:2.) While Mr. Smith may not 

have intended to cause that person physical harm by finding out her real name and address, 

Defendants have never alleged anything of the sort. Obviously, Mr. Smith’s acts of 

unmasking an intentionally pseudonymous internet user and mocking said person on the 

268



 

8 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

 
A

T
T

O
R

N
E

Y
S 

A
T 

LA
W

 
70

1 
EA

ST
 B

R
ID

G
ER

 A
V

E.
, S

U
IT

E 
52

0 
LA

S 
V

EG
A

S,
 N

V
 8

91
01

 
(7

02
)7

28
-5

30
0 

(T
) /

 (7
02

)4
25

-8
22

0 
(F

) 
W

W
W

.N
V

LI
TI

G
A

TI
O

N
.C

O
M

 
 

internet were intended to cause that person emotional harm and lower her status in the 

thrifting community—i.e., “take them down.” Mr. Smith has not contested, nor can he 

contest, the veracity of this allegation. 

As further noted in the Motion, another member of the thrifting community alleged 

that Mr. Smith dug up her arrest record and shared said information with that person’s 

husband. (See Motion, p. 16:3-8.) Thus, Defendants have demonstrated their allegations 

regarding Mr. Smith’s gathering and revealing personal information to the detriment of his 

enemies in the thrifting community are substantially true, and therefore good faith 

communications. 

b) Statements that Mr. Smith Intentionally Has People 

Barred From Business Events to “Take People Down” Are 

Truthful or Were Made Without Knowledge of Falsehood. 

Mr. Smith cites to Defendants’ Motion, p. 16:15-17, in arguing that “Defendants’ 

Motion to Dismiss provides alleged statements from an individual who says that Smith ‘dug 

up dirt’ on a rival thrifter, which was sent to eBay, resulting in eBay rescinding her invite” 

and that “[t]here is no evidence to establish that Smith ‘dug up dirt’ nor do they even what 

such statement means.” (Opp., p. 11:21-25.) However, Mr. Smith ignores that the Defendants 

provided evidence that Mr. Smith advocated for organizers of eBay Open—a large annual 

convention of eBay sellers—to disinvite an individual named Nicole State. (See Motion, p. 

16:18 – 17:1.) Mr. Smith does not, and cannot, deny that Exhibit 11 to the Motion reflects 

that Mr. Smith has used his influence to have Nicole State disinvited from eBay Open.  

While Mr. Smith may deny his motives in doing so, he cannot deny that the natural, 

expected effect of having someone disinvited from a prestigious annual business conference 

would be to lower that person’s status and deny them opportunities in the thrifting 

community—i.e. “take them down.” While this alone may not “establish any predatory or 

anti-social behavior” (Opp., p. 11:26), whether “taking someone down” in such a manner is 

“predatory” or “anti-social” is a matter of opinion, incapable of being proven true or false. 

Pegasus v. Reno Newspapers, Inc., 118 Nev. 706, 714, 57 P.3d 82, 87 (2002) (“Statements 
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of opinion cannot be defamatory because there is no such thing as a false idea.”) (quotation 

omitted; internal punctuation omitted). Thus, the statements in Ms. Zilverberg’s YouTube 

video alleging that Mr. Smith has had people barred or disinvited from business events are 

therefore good faith communications. 

c) Statements that Mr. Smith Has Caused People to Feel 

Suicidal Are Truthful or Were Made Without Knowledge of 

Falsehood. 

Mr. Smith attempts to argue that Ms. Zilverberg’s statement that Mr. Smith’s 

behavior has caused others to contemplate suicide is not a good faith communication because 

“it implicates Smith as a criminal” and that Defendants did not “present any substantive 

evidence to establish this statement is true, because once again it is entirely false and 

Defendants are aware of this.” (Opp., p. 12:5-9.) 

To begin with, the fact that one’s behavior induced suicidal ideation in others does 

not implicate criminal behavior. One could easily imagine an extremely sensitive person 

being driven to dark thoughts by mean-spirited (though non-criminal) behavior that a less 

sensitive person may be capable of shrugging off. Nevertheless, it appears that Mr. Smith 

simply ignored the portion of the Motion in which Defendants set forth the circumstances, 

supported by evidence, in which multiple people either implied or flatly stated that they or 

their loved ones were contemplating self-harm or suicide as a result of Mr. Smith’s behavior. 

(Motion, pp. 17:11 – 18:24; Exh. 3, p. 23; Exh. 13; Exh. 14, p. 8.) Mr. Smith had an 

opportunity to present evidence contradicting the veracity of these claims or the evidence on 

which they are based. He did not, and he cannot. Therefore, Defendants have established by 

a preponderance of the evidence that Ms. Zilverberg’s statements that Mr. Smith’s behavior 

have caused others to contemplate suicide are substantially true or were made without 

knowledge of falsehood, and thus constitute good faith communications. 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 
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d) Defendants Did Not Claim that Mr. Smith Had Criminal 

Charges Against Him—But Even if They Did, They Had Reason 

to Believe it Was True. 

As a threshold matter, Mr. Smith has not provided any evidence beyond naked 

allegations that Defendants have ever said or implied that Mr. Smith has a criminal record. 

For instance, Mr. Smith claims that “Defendant [sic] made numerous false and highly 

statements about Smith, including criminal charges.” (Opp., p. 12:10-11.) Mr. Smith also 

claims that Defendants “have falsely alleged to the public that I have a criminal record of 

restraining orders and a verified history of harassment.” (Exh. 1 to Opp., ¶ 27.) However, 

unlike several of the other allegations in Mr. Smith’s Complaint, Mr. Smith has not bothered 

to specify any actual statements made by Defendants, let alone provide evidence of those 

statements, claiming Mr. Smith has a criminal record. As much as Mr. Smith wishes they 

were, allegations that others attempted to file restraining orders against him, or that he has 

engaged in bullying behavior, or even that his behavior has driven others to contemplate 

suicide, are not allegations that Mr. Smith is a criminal or has a criminal record. 

  Furthermore, Exhibit 16 to the Motion, a screenshot of an online background check 

of Jason Todd Smith, is not being proffered for proof that Mr. Smith committed all the acts 

alleged in the Exhibit. Nor is it a “desperate attempt by Defendants to cover up their 

misdeeds” as Mr. Smith alleges. (Opp., p. 11:9.)5 Rather, it demonstrates that if Defendants 

accused Mr. Smith of criminal activity—which they did not—they had a reasonable basis for 

forming this opinion. Defendants are not police officers, private eyes or experts on 

 
5 To the extent that Mr. Smith argues that “Defendants continue to defame Smith by falsely 
associating his identity with unrelated misdemeanor and felony charges in a public Court 
document” (Opp., p. 11:9-12 (emphasis in original)) such putative claims would be barred 
by Nevada’s litigation privilege, which precludes civil liability based on “communications 
uttered or published in the course of judicial proceedings.” Circus Circus Hotels, Inc. v. 
Witherspoon, 99 Nev. 56, 60, 657 P.2d 101, 104 (1983). Additionally, far from being “in line 
with furthering Defendants’ scheme to injure Plaintiff and destroy his reputation and career” 
(Opp., p. 11:12-13), the inclusion of Exhibit 16 is necessary to establishing that Mr. Smith 
cannot prove the actual malice element of the defamation claim which he, a public figure, 
willingly pursued. 
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background reports and therefore need not, as Mr. Smith suggests, perform “due diligence” 

in deciding whether to believe the contents of a background report pertain to Mr. Smith. 

Furthermore, Mr. Smith has not refuted Defendants’ contention—supported by evidence—

that Mr. Smith himself bragged about engaging in criminal activities in the past. (See Motion, 

p. 20:6-8; Exh. 17.) Thus, Mr. Smith’s allegations that the crimes in Exhibit 16 do not pertain 

to him (Opp., p. 7:4-15; pp. 10:27 – 11:8) are irrelevant to the determination of whether 

allegations that Mr. Smith engaged in criminal activity—which again, Defendants did not 

make—were made without knowledge of their falsehood and therefore good faith 

communications. 

e) Ms. Eagan Had Reason to Believe that Others Had Filed 

Restraining Orders Against Mr. Smith. 

Mr. Smith argues that “Defendant Eagan posted statements regarding Smith on her 

Facebook account, wherein she included a statement that Smith had multiple restraining 

orders against him, ultimately implying that not only does Smith have a criminal record but 

also that Smith has a verified history of harassment” and that “Defendant Zilverberg endorsed 

this post on Eagan’s Facebook.” (Opp., p. 10:22-25.) Mr. Smith further complains that there 

is not “any evidence that Smith has ever any restraining orders against him.” (Id., p. 10:26-

27 (emphasis in original).) 

Even if Defendants have not produced evidence that anybody has successfully 

obtained a restraining order against Mr. Smith, and even if, arguendo, it is not true that Mr. 

Smith has had restraining orders filed against him, Defendants have produced sufficient 

evidence to demonstrate that the complained-of statement was made without knowledge of 

its falsehood. As is explained in Defendants’ Motion and not refuted in Mr. Smith’s 

Opposition, Ms. Eagan heard identical allegations from two trusted sources that two of his 

harassment victims, Danni Ackerman and Ms. Ackerman’s mother, had filed restraining 

orders. (See Motion, p. 19:6-16; Exh. 2, ¶¶ 14-15; Exh. 15.) As noted in the Motion, Danni 

Ackerman herself publicly commented on Ms. Zilverberg’s YouTube video that she and her 

mother “had police involved” in her encounters with Mr. Smith. (See Exh. 3, p. 48.) Thus, 
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even if it were not true, the statement that Mr. Smith has had restraining orders against him 

was made without knowledge of its falsehood and is therefore entitled to anti-SLAPP 

protection. 

2. Defendants’ Statements Were Made in Good Faith. 

Mr. Smith cites to no statute or case law in arguing that Defendants’ complained-

of statements were not made in “good faith.” (See generally Opp., p. 13:12 – 14:10.) That is 

because his entire argument is a bald-faced attempt to mislead the Court. Nevada’s anti-

SLAPP statute plainly defines a “good faith communication in furtherance … of the right to 

free speech in direct connection with an issue of public concern” as a “[c]ommunication 

made in direct connection with an issue of public interest in a place open to the public or in 

a public forum which is truthful or is made without knowledge of its falsehood.” Nev. Rev. 

Stat. § 41.637(4). Notably absent is a requirement that the speaker not have animosity toward 

her subject, or a requirement that speaker and the subject not be contemporaries in the same 

business community. 

Indeed, the Nevada Supreme Court unambiguously held that “the term ‘good faith’ 

does not operate independently within the anti-SLAPP statute. Rather, it is part of the phrase 

‘good faith communication in furtherance of the right to petition or the right to free speech 

in direct connection with an issue of public concern.’” Shapiro v. Welt, 133 Nev. 35, 38, 389 

P.3d 262, 267 (2017). The Court continued, “the phrase ‘made without knowledge of its 

falsehood’ has a well-settled and ordinarily understood meaning. The declarant must be 

unaware that the communication is false at the time it was made.” Id. (emphasis added). 

As argued at length in §III(B)(1), supra, in the Motion (pp. 13:18 - 20:17), and supported by 

the exhibits attached to the Motion, Defendants were unaware their statements about Mr. 

Smith—if they were indeed false—were false at the time they were made. Therefore, 

regardless of Mr. Smith’s irrelevant and incorrect beliefs about Defendants’ motives, the 

complained-of statements were good faith communications under the plain language of Nev. 

Rev. Stat. § 41.637(4). 

/ / / 
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3. Defendants’ Statements Were Directly Connected to a Matter of 

Public Interest. 

Mr. Smith ably recites the Weinberg factors and accurately describes the factual 

circumstances of Pope v. Fellhauer, a “key mark [sic] case on Nevada’s anti-SLAPP law” in 

which the Nevada Supreme Court upheld the denial of a defamation defendant’s anti-SLAPP 

motion to dismiss. (Opp., pp. 14:16-15:20.) Beyond that, Mr. Smith’s arguments are 

unavailing. This case is very different from Pope v. Fellhauer and should be decided 

differently. Furthermore, discussion of Mr. Smith’s conduct in the thrifting community, 

while perhaps not directly related to the act of thrifting, is directly related to the issue of 

whether thrifters should purchase Mr. Smith’s products or patronize Mr. Smith’s groups, 

thereby exposing themselves to potential abuse and bullying, which is of concern to a 

substantial number of people and goes beyond “mere curiosity.” 

Mr. Smith elides the Nevada Supreme Court’s explicit mandate that Nevada courts 

“define an issue of public interest broadly.” Coker v. Sassone, 135 Nev. Adv. Op. 2, 10, 432 

P.3d 746, 751 (2019). Indeed, with regard to demonstrating whether a statement concerns an 

issue of public interest, “the bar for an anti-SLAPP defendant to overcome is not a 

particularly demanding one.” Harris v. Mayweather, No. B276174, 2018 WL 3424471, at *5 

(Cal. Ct. App. July 16, 2018). As demonstrated below and in the Motion, discussion of Mr. 

Smith’s behavior in the community which made him famous clears this bar, is directly 

connected to an issue of public concern, and therefore merits anti-SLAPP protection. 

a) The Instant Case is Distinguishable From Pope v. 

Fellhauer. 

Mr. Smith is absolutely wrong to assert that “Pope v. Fellhauer is identical to the 

case at issue here.” (Opp.., p. 15:21.) As argued at length in Defendants’ Motion (pp. 9:10-

12:8) there are many factors distinguishing the instant case from Pope. In Pope, the court 

held that there was “no evidence that anyone—other than his two friends—were concerned 

with Pope’s commentary or that Pope was adding to a preexisting discussion.” (Opp., p. 

15:18-20 (quoting Pope, 2019 WL 1313365 at *2).) Here, by contrast, Defendants have 
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presented evidence that the complained-of statements added to a preexisting discussion of 

Mr. Smith’s conduct, and that their complained-of statements generated yet more discussion 

of said conduct. (See Motion, pp. 10:25-12:8 (citations to exhibits omitted).) This indicates 

that Mr. Smith’s conduct in the thrifting community is a matter of public interest, as it made 

public an ongoing discussion that the thrifting community had only spoken about sub rosa 

for fear of Mr. Smith’s retaliation and reprisals. 

Indeed, there is more evidence that the communications at issue in this case—unlike 

those in Pope—contributed to an ongoing discussion of Mr. Smith’s conduct in the thrifting 

community. On June 6, 2018, an individual named Casey Parris shared the YouTube video 

at issue in this matter by posting it on Facebook, noting that he had received “many emails” 

regarding Mr. Smith’s conduct. (Exh. 20 [screenshot of Casey Parris’s June 6, 2018 

Facebook post and comments thereto], p. 1.) Several individuals commented on Casey 

Parris’s Facebook post to share their own stories of Mr. Smith’s abhorrent behavior.6 As 

 
6 (See, e.g., Exh. 20, p. 1 (comment from Megan Lindsey stating, “Not only is he a bully, but 
he is verbally abusive behind the scenes.”); id., p. 2 (comment from Kimmie Klock stating, 
“I was harassed by him and told many different things that were not at all accurate.”); id. 
(comment from Christina St Louis stating, “I left the group and he private messaged me 
harassing me. I had to block him.”); id. (comment from Esmeralda Valague stating, “He was 
1000% a bully to me when I was in TTB. He had his lifeguards cyber-stalk me in other groups 
sending him screenshots of everything I said about eBay thinking it was al about him.”); id., 
p. 5 (comment from Stephanie Abernathy stating, “Jason is a dick who decided to destroy 
[his former co-host] just like he has done others when he is finished using them.”); id., p. 6 
(comment from Alice Fay Means stating, “I had a bad experience with him … He got very 
nasty in PMs.”); id. (comment from Candace Pitt stating, “He called me several names and 
ran his fat ugly mouth off to me because I disagreed w someone in his shitty group.”); id. 
(comment from Alice Fay Means stating, “He would not stop berating me … he continued 
to attack me.”); id., p. 7 (comment from Sandy Mae stating, “I was too afraid to comment on 
Katie’s video because I’m afraid he or his cronies will wreak havoc in my eBay store buying 
and leaving negative FB,” that Mr. Smith “reamed me a new a hole” and that she is “so glad 
Katie had the courage to speak up and tried to stop him from hurting other people.”); id., p. 
8 (comment from Holli Hudson stating, “I left the group due to a disagreement and Jason T 
Smith came at me attacking me in my inbox.”); id., p. 9 (comment from Susan Halteman 
stating, “Someone should have tried to stop this years ago, but we didn’t really have the 
platform. I had at least three negative experiences with Jason and I believe he was behind an 
attempt to discredit me as a seller.”); id., p. 9 (comment from Brandy Simonton criticizing 
Mr. Smith and stating, “I am actually scared to post this. Him and his minions are scary.”); 
id. (comment from Susan Halteman stating, “He has a pattern of behavior that has directly 
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demonstrated by these comments, Defendants’ communications emboldened others to 

publicly discuss Mr. Smith’s behavior despite their not-unreasonable fears that Mr. Smith 

would seek vengeance against them. 

Finally, in Pope, the parties were all private citizens whose dispute did not extend 

beyond the boundaries of their cul-de-sac. Here, by contrast, Mr. Smith is a public figure 

who has made his living projecting a certain image and cultivating his reputation not merely 

within the thrifting community, but with the general public as well. (Compl., ¶¶ 7 – 12; Exh. 

1 to Opp., ¶¶ 4-7.) Although Defendants’ complained-of statements do speak to their own 

negative interactions with Mr. Smith, the complained-of statements go far beyond a mere 

personal dispute. Indeed, the complained-of statements speak to Mr. Smith’s long history of 

bullying and abuse not merely with Defendants, but with several other members of the 

thrifting community. (See, e.g. Motion, pp. 11-12, n.8 (list of comments posted on Ms. 

Zilverberg’s YouTube video in which many members of the thrifting community shared their 

stories of Mr. Smith’s bad behavior).) Therefore, in contrast to Pope v. Fellhauer, the 

communications at issue in this matter are directly connected to a matter of public concern, 

and thus merit anti-SLAPP protection. 

b) Mr. Smith’s Status as a Public Figure Necessarily Makes 

Mr. Smith’s Activities in the Thrifting Community a Matter of 

Public Concern. 

Mr. Smith argues that Defendants want “free reign to defame him and post false 

statements about him” because Mr. Smith is a “public figure,” and that whether Mr. Smith is 

a “public figure” pertains only to the actual malice requirement under his defamation claim, 

not whether such statements “automatically pertain to a matter of interest.” (Opp., p. 3:19-

24.) Contrary to this assertion, and as demonstrated by case law, whether a SLAPP plaintiff 

is a “public figure” is critical to the determination of whether statements about said plaintiff 

 
affected a lot of us. Many have been afraid -and rightly so- to speak out for fear of retaliation. 
I have personally experienced it and I know of others that have.”); id. (comment from Kenny 
Long stating, “He is a bully and I left his group over a conversation we had on messenger.”).) 
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are made in direct connection with a matter of public concern. 

“In general, [a] public issue is implicated if the subject of the statement or activity 

underlying the claim (1) was a person or entity in the public eye; (2) could affect large 

numbers of people beyond the direct participants; or (3) involved a topic of widespread, 

public interest.” D.C. v. R.R., 106 Cal. Rptr. 3d 399, 417 (Cal. Ct. App. 2010) (internal 

quotation marks and citation omitted) (emphasis added). While thrifting in itself is arguably 

a “topic of widespread, public interest,” it is beyond debate that Mr. Smith is a public figure, 

i.e. a “person or entity in the public eye.” (See Compl., ¶¶ 7-12.) 

As argued in the Motion, as a public figure, Mr. Smith’s conduct in the thrifting 

community is automatically of concern to a large number of people. See Serova v. Sony Music 

Entm’t, 26 Cal. App. 5th 759, 772, 237 Cal. Rptr. 3d 487, 496 (Ct. App. 2018), as modified 

on denial of reh’g (Sept. 13, 2018) (internal citations and quotation marks omitted) (“Public 

interest in the life and work of entertainers and other celebrities can create an ‘issue of public 

interest’ for purposes of [California’s anti-SLAPP statute]. There is a public interest which 

attaches to people who, by their accomplishments, mode of living, professional standing or 

calling, create a legitimate and widespread attention to their activities.”). 

California courts have long held that a plaintiff’s status as a public figure is 

critical—if not dispositive—to the determination of whether a statement about said plaintiff 

is a matter of public concern. For instance, the California Court of Appeals held that allegedly 

defamatory statements about private conduct (specifically, a famous boxer’s ex-girlfriend’s 

decision to have cosmetic surgery) touched on a matter of public concern due to the parties’ 

notoriety. Jackson v. Mayweather, 10 Cal.App.5th 1240, 1255, 217 Cal.Rptr.3d 234, 248 

(Cal. Ct. App. 2017). In one circumstance, a California court implicitly held that the 

plaintiff’s admission that he was a public figure was itself enough to connect statements 

about him and his church to an issue of public interest. Heying v. Newsmax Media, Inc., 2018 

WL 346001, *4 (Cal. Ct. App. 2018). In the instant case, this Court need not look past Mr. 

Smith’s Complaint (see Compl., ¶¶ 7-12) to determine that he is a public figure whose 

accomplishments and professional standing create a legitimate and widespread attention to 
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his conduct in the thrifting community and beyond. 

More recently, the California Supreme Court explicitly endorsed the proposition 

that a person’s status as a “figure in the public eye” is sufficient “to establish the statement 

is ‘free speech in connection with a public issue or an issue of public interest.’” Wilson v. 

Cable News Network, Inc., 7 Cal. 5th 871, 902, 444 P.3d 706, 725 (2019). As Mr. Smith is 

undisputedly a public figure (Compl., ¶¶ 7-12), Defendants’ criticism of his behavior—

particularly his behavior within the thrifting community—is necessarily in direct connection 

with an issue of public concern, and therefore merits protection under Nevada’s anti-SLAPP 

statute. 

c) Warning the Thrifting Community About Mr. Smith’s 

Anti-Social Behavior Is Directly Connected to a Matter of 

Public Concern. 

It is also beyond debate that warnings about Mr. Smith’s behavior affect large 

numbers of people beyond Mr. Smith and Defendants and are therefore directly connected 

to a matter of public concern. Mr. Smith correctly acknowledges that Defendants allege they 

were “protecting the thrifting world from Smith and his ‘anti-social behavior.’” (Opp., p. 

16:1-2.) However, he incorrectly argues that this is not a “matter of public interest” on two 

grounds. First, Mr. Smith feigns ignorance about “how statements directed toward a 

community of approximately 55,000 people, out of approximately 330 million people living 

in the United States, constitutes a ‘public concern.’” (Opp., p. 16:2-4.) However, even if this 

Court accepts Mr. Smith’s unsupported, conservative estimate of the size of the thrifting 

community, such estimated figures are irrelevant to whether allegations regarding Mr. 

Smith’s behavior are a matter of concern to a substantial number of people.  

Even if Mr. Smith’s conduct toward his fellow members of the thrifting community 

were not automatically a matter of public concern by virtue of his widespread notoriety and 

undisputed status as a public figure, Defendants’ communications were directed to a 

substantial number of people—the thrifting community writ large, not merely members of 

Mr. Smith’s specific Facebook group. (See Exh. 18, ¶ 25; Exh. 19, ¶ 18.) Courts have rejected 
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the notion that a community must be larger than some “magic number” for communications 

made to it to merit anti-SLAPP protection. Recently, a California appellate court held that 

allegedly defamatory statements in a press release published by the non-profit Ethiopian 

Sport Federation (ESF) merited anti-SLAPP protection because the allegations against its 

former board member were “clearly issues that would affect, and thus be of interest to 

members of ESF and the Ethiopian community at large, i.e., 

a discrete but substantial portion of the public.” Teferi v. Ethiopian Sports Fed’n in N. Am., 

No. B282403, 2019 WL 1292272, at *7 (Cal. Ct. App. Mar. 20, 2019) (emphasis added). 

Likewise, Hecimovich v. Encinal School Parent Teacher Organization, 203 

Cal.App.4th 450, 137 Cal.Rptr.3d 455 (Cal. Ct. App. 2012), demonstrates that even 

allegations which pertain to a tiny segment of the population can merit anti-SLAPP 

protection. In Hecimovich, the plaintiff sued over allegations regarding his fitness to coach 

the Encinal School’s after-school youth basketball team. Id. at 465-66, 467. Even though the 

only people directly affected by the plaintiff’s alleged actions (and the defendants’ alleged 

communications) were children who attended that specific school (and their parents), the 

court nevertheless held that the statements at issue touched on “an issue of public interest.” 

Id. at 466, 468. The court concluded that “safety in youth sports, not to mention problem 

coaches/problem parents in youth sports, is another issue of public interest within the SLAPP 

law.” Id. at 468, 469. 

Notably, the court in Teferi did not entertain some sort of calculus to determine 

whether there were “enough” Ethiopians or persons of Ethiopian descent living in America 

to make statements concerning the Ethiopian community a matter of public concern. Nor did 

the court in Hecimovich entertain the question of how large a school must be to determine 

whether allegations about a coach at said school implicates a matter of public interest under 

anti-SLAPP law. This Court should decline to apply such a calculus here—as argued in the 

Motion, the thrifting community is a discrete but substantial portion of the public,7 and 

 
7 Indeed, if it were not a substantial portion of the public, Mr. Smith would never have been 
able to parlay his success in the thrifting community into having his own cable TV show or 
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therefore statements regarding Mr. Smith’s conduct in said community are in direct 

connection with a matter of public concern. 

Mr. Smith’s argument that Defendants’ statements “are not directly connected to 

the thrifting and buying and selling used goods” and therefore not directly connected to a 

matter of public concern (Opp., p. 16:6-8) is misplaced. First, thrifting is a social activity, 

and thrifting community members’ interactions with Mr. Smith are inextricably linked with 

people’s choices to do business with him in that community. Simply put, people have a right 

to base their decision to patronize a business not merely on the quality of that business’s 

product, but on how that business’s purveyor treats them and other members of the 

community as well. 

Second, and more importantly, constricting the topics of speech directly connected 

to an issue of public concern to statements about Mr. Smith “directly connected to the 

thrifting, and buying and selling used goods” would be an unwarranted departure from the 

Nevada Supreme Court’s explicit mandate that courts define “public interest” broadly. Coker 

v. Sassone, 135 Nev. Adv. Op. 2, 10, 432 P.3d 746, 751 (2019). If this Court were to adopt 

Mr. Smith’s extremely narrow interpretation of “public interest,” it would exempt wide 

swaths of socially beneficial discussion from anti-SLAPP protection. For instance, under Mr. 

Smith’s rubric, public discussion of a casino owner’s alleged sexual misconduct would not 

be entitled to anti-SLAPP protection because those activities—despite being of great interest 

to millions—are not directly related to the business of owning and operating a casino. This 

Court should not countenance such an affront to First Amendment principles which 

encourage open and frank discussion of public figures’ conduct in the community, and 

therefore should hold that Defendants’ communications were made in direct connection with 

a matter of public concern.   

/ / / 

/ / / 
 

appearing as an expert on TV shows that have viewerships reaching far beyond the thrifting 
community to the public at large, such as Pawn Stars. (See Compl., ¶¶ 8, 10) 
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C. Mr. Smith Cannot Satisfy the Second Prong of the Anti-SLAPP 

Analysis. 

Mr. Smith argues that “Plaintiffs [sic] have met the burden of establishing, by clear 

evidence, a prima facie case of defamation and conspiracy, as allege [sic] in Smith’s 

Complaint.” (Opp., p. 16:23-24.) This contention is easily refuted by reading the remainder 

of Mr. Smith’s Opposition: Mr. Smith’s arguments for why he has met his burden under the 

second prong are wholly devoid of evidentiary support. He does not even cite to his own self-

serving declaration in attempting to explain how his claims have any chance of success on 

their merits. As one California court has held, an anti-SLAPP plaintiff “cannot rely on the 

allegations of the complaint, but must produce evidence that would be admissible at trial.” 

Heying v. Newsmax Media, Inc., No. B278384, 2018 WL 346001, at *5 (Cal. Ct. App. Jan. 

10, 2018). As Mr. Smith failed to produce any evidence—besides his own declaration, which 

essentially parrots the allegations made in his Complaint—to support any of his claims, the 

Court must rule that Mr. Smith failed to meet his burden under the second prong of Nevada’s 

anti-SLAPP analysis. 

1. Defamation 

Mr. Smith argues, in conclusory fashion, that he “has met his burden of establishing 

a prima facie claim for defamation per se and the evidence established thus far support [sic] 

all essential elements” of a defamation claim. (Opp., p. 17:6-7.) He bases this on the naked 

assertions that statements regarding Mr. Smith being the target of restraining orders “are 

clearly defamatory and have been proven though public records to be false” (Id., p. 17:8-10) 

and that there is “no evidence … that establishes that Smith intentionally had individuals 

‘kicked out’ of thrifting events to ‘take them down.” (Id., p. 17:11-13.) As demonstrated in 

the Motion and in §III(B)(1), supra, Defendants have proffered evidence suggesting that 

individuals have sought restraining orders against Mr. Smith, and that Mr. Smith has had 

individuals barred (or had individuals’ invitations rescinded) from thrifting events, which 

would naturally have the effect of “taking down” someone who had hoped to attend those 

events. Mr. Smith has presented nothing beyond a declaration which does not contradict any 
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of the evidence proffered by Defendants. Thus, Mr. Smith has not provided prima facie 

evidence of fulfilling the first element of defamation—i.e. that the statements Defendants 

made about him were either false or defamatory. 

Despite listing the elements of defamation (Opp., pp. 16:26 – 17:5), Mr. Smith’s 

Opposition is silent regarding the third element of defamation, fault. This is because Mr. 

Smith, a public figure by his own admission, knows he cannot demonstrate it. The standard 

required by the United States Constitution for fault when the subject of alleged defamation 

is a public figure is actual malice. Wynn v. Smith, 117 Nev. 6, 16, 16 P.3d 424, 430 (2001) 

(citing New York Times Co. v. Sullivan, 376 U.S. 254, 279–80, 84 S.Ct. 710, 11 L.Ed.2d 686 

(1964)). “Actual malice (or more appropriately, constitutional malice) is defined as 

knowledge of the falsity of the statement or a reckless disregard for the truth.” Nevada Indep. 

Broad. Corp. v. Allen, 99 Nev. 404, 414, 664 P.2d 337, 344 (1983) (citing New York Times 

Co. v. Sullivan, 376 U.S. at 280) (emphasis in original). “In contrast to common law malice, 

the inquiry in ‘actual malice’ focuses largely on the defendant’s belief regarding truthfulness 

of the published material rather than on the defendant’s attitude toward the plaintiff.” Id. 

(citing Greenbelt Coop. Pub. Ass’n, Inc. v. Bresler, 398 U.S. 6, 10, 90 S.Ct. 1537, 1540, 26 

L.Ed.2d 6 (1970)). 

In the instant case, Mr. Smith has provided no evidence—aside from the beliefs 

stated in his declaration—that Defendants entertained any doubt as to the truth of their 

statements. By contrast, Defendants have attached numerous exhibits to their Motion which 

demonstrate the bases for their belief in the truthfulness of their statements. Mr. Smith has 

failed to demonstrate by prima facie evidence that Defendants acted with actual (i.e. 

constitutional) malice and therefore his defamation claim must fail as a matter of law. 

Essentially, because Mr. Smith only makes conclusory arguments instead of presenting any 

evidence to support his defamation claim, he has utterly failed to provide prima facie 

evidence of any likelihood of success on the merits of said claim. 

/ / / 

/ / / 
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2. Conspiracy 

After reciting the elements of civil conspiracy (Opp., p. 17:22 – 18:10) Mr. Smith 

argues—without citation to any evidence or case law—that “the evidence clearly establishes 

that Defendants acted in concert, by both posting and endorsing, false and defamatory 

statements about Smith for the purpose of harming his business and his reputation in the 

thrifting world, a world that Defendants are just now up and coming in and seeking to profit 

in.” (Id., p. 18:11-14.) 

As argued in the Motion and supra, there was nothing illegal or tortious about 

Defendants exercising their First Amendment right to criticize Mr. Smith’s behavior, and 

Mr. Smith’s conclusory allegations, repeated in his Opposition, do not make it otherwise. 

(Motion, p. 22:10-16.) Because Mr. Smith has not produced prima facie evidence that he has 

any probability of succeeding on his defamation claim, his derivative claim for conspiracy 

must also fail as a matter of law. 

3. Injunctive Relief 

As a threshold matter, Mr. Smith did not address any of Defendants’ arguments 

regarding the propriety of “injunctive relief” as a cause of action, including the key First 

Amendment issues inherent in any injunction barring speech (i.e., a prior restraint). (Motion, 

pp. 22:19 – 23:1.) Pursuant to EDCR 2.20(e) this should be construed as an admission that 

Defendants’ position is meritorious. 

To obtain an injunction Mr. Smith must actually succeed—or, in the case of a 

preliminary injunction, establish a likelihood of success—on a real cause of action. See, e.g., 

Shores v. Glob. Experience Specialists, Inc., 134 Nev. 503, 507, 422 P.3d 1238, 1242 (2018) 

(holding that “the party seeking a preliminary injunction must demonstrate a reasonable 

probability of success on the merits”). As argued supra and in the Motion, Mr. Smith cannot 

establish any probability of success on his claim for defamation (or his conspiracy claim 

which is wholly derivative of his defamation claim), and therefore is not entitled to injunctive 

relief as a matter of law. 

/ / / 
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To obtain injunctive relief, Mr. Smith must also “demonstrate that the nonmoving 

party’s conduct, if allowed to continue, will cause irreparable harm for which compensatory 

relief is inadequate.” Id. Mr. Smith does not provide prima facie evidence that he will suffer 

from irreparable harm. Instead, he just argues, without and legal or factual support, “that 

immediate and irreparable injury will result to Smith unless this Court enters an injunction” 

as “such false statements … continues cause [sic] severe and irreparable harm and injury to 

Smith’s goodwill, reputation and his business.” (Opp., p. 18:20-23.) It is unclear what 

“continuing conduct” Mr. Smith hopes to enjoin. Ms. Zilverberg’s allegedly defamatory 

YouTube video was published on June 6, 2018 and voluntarily taken down five days later by 

Ms. Zilverberg on June 11, 2018. (Exh. 1, ¶¶ 7, 14; Exh. 18, ¶ 22.) Mr. Smith has not 

established that Ms. Eagan’s Facebook post is still accessible online. Mr. Smith has failed to 

point to any other publication in which Defendants allegedly defamed him. 

Furthermore, aside from his conclusory assertions (Exh. 1 to Opp., ¶¶ 24, 28), Mr. 

Smith has not provided evidence of any harm to his reputation or his business, much less that 

said harm was proximately caused by Defendants’ statements which, as noted above, are no 

longer online. There is no factual basis for this Court to issue a preliminary (let alone 

permanent) injunction because there is neither “continuing behavior” to enjoin nor 

“irreparable harm” being suffered by Mr. Smith. Moreover, as noted above, the claim for an 

injunction fails as a matter of law as it is not a cause of action and impermissible under the 

First Amendment. Therefore, Mr. Smith has not established any chance of prevailing on his 

“cause of action” for injunctive relief, as it must fail as a matter of law.8 

D. Public Policy Requires that This Matter Be Disposed of Expeditiously. 

To avoid dismissal on anti-SLAPP grounds, Mr. Smith makes vague and 

inapplicable arguments asking that the Court allow this case to drag on. (See, e.g., Opp., p. 

 
8 Additionally, Mr. Smith does not appear to oppose Defendants’ assertion that prior 
restraints on speech—i.e. the type of injunctive relief sought by Mr. Smith here—are 
presumptively unconstitutional. (Motion, pp. 23:2-25:11.) This should be construed as a non-
opposition and an admission by Mr. Smith that said argument is meritorious. See EDCR 
2.20(e). 
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19:15-21.) His arguments fail in this anti-SLAPP context. The anti-SLAPP statute is 

designed to protect free speech by protecting speakers from liability and Mr. Smith’s effort 

to prolong this case must be rejected. Mr. Smith was also required to make a specific showing 

to obtain discovery and failed to do so. Thus, Mr. Smith’s effort to delay on the grounds that 

discovery is needed must necessarily fail. 

1. The  Anti-SLAPP Legal Standard Applies. 

Anti-SLAPP law exists to deter precisely the litigation Mr. Smith has engaged in.  

While he generally recites the correct legal standard at pages 8 and 9 of his Opposition, Mr. 

Smith incorrectly asserts that, even though this is a Motion to Dismiss pursuant to Nev. Rev. 

Stat. § 41.660 rather than a motion to dismiss pursuant to Nev. R. Civ. P. 12(b)(5), his 

pleadings must be “construed liberally construed liberally and place into issue matters which 

are fairly noticed to the adverse party.” (Opp., p. 19:4-5.)9 As a Hail Mary pass, Mr. Smith 

trots out generic case law regarding Nevada’s notice pleading standard—all of which 

predates Nevada’s enactment of its anti-SLAPP law in 1993—to stand for the proposition 

that his frivolous lawsuit be spared the “harsh remedy” of dismissal. (Opp., p. 19:4-14.) 

While it may “serve the interests of justice” that a matter be presented to the trier of fact 

where a case is “presently being prosecuted with diligence” (id., p. 19:13-14) this is not such 

a case. Rather, this is a case where a famous plaintiff is attempting to use the legal system as 

a cudgel to silence his critics, precisely the type of lawsuit Nevada’s anti-SLAPP statute was 

intended to discourage. 

“Nevada’s anti-SLAPP statutes aim to protect First Amendment rights by providing 

defendants with a procedural mechanism to dismiss ‘meritless lawsuit[s] that a party initiates 

primarily to chill a defendant’s exercise of his or her First Amendment free speech rights’ 

before incurring the costs of litigation.” Coker v. Sassone, 135 Nev. Adv. Op. 2, 432 P.3d 

 
9 Given that Mr. Smith has repeatedly failed to point to the actual, specific statements 
underlying his claims—e.g., that Defendants stated he had a criminal record—he has 
arguably failed to provide notice of his claims to Defendants even under Nevada’s notice 
pleading standard. 
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746, 748 (2019) (citing Stubbs v. Strickland, 129 Nev. 146, 150, 297 P.3d 326, 329 (2013)) 

(emphasis added). Indeed, Nevada’s anti-SLAPP statute stands for the proposition that the 

interests of justice are best served when some cases—such as the instant one—are disposed 

of before the plaintiff “wins by default,” i.e. makes it financially untenable for defendants to 

continue to defend their First Amendment rights. This is why Nevada’s anti-SLAPP law 

mandates adjudication within 20 judicial days (Nev. Rev. Stat. § 41.660(3)(f))—so that a 

SLAPP plaintiff cannot endlessly extend a frivolous suit to increase defendants’ costs. This 

is why Nevada’s anti-SLAPP law stays discovery (Nev. Rev. Stat. § 41.660(3(e))—so that a 

SLAPP plaintiff cannot increase defendants’ legal bills by forcing them and their attorneys 

to engage in time-consuming (but ultimately pointless) discovery. 

This Court should not entertain Mr. Smith’s invitation to abrogate Nevada’s anti-

SLAPP law from the bench and must instead apply Nevada’s anti-SLAPP law to dispense 

with this quintessential SLAPP once and for all. Indeed, based on his refusal to even bother 

to state with particularity Defendants’ allegedly defamatory statements, his unsupported 

allegations of damages, the paucity of evidence and case law presented by Mr. Smith to 

support any of his arguments, and Mr. Smith’s failure to meet the deadline for filing his 

Opposition, this Court should infer that Mr. Smith’s intention in filing this suit was not to 

ultimately prevail on the merits, but to force Defendants to choose between incurring the cost 

of litigation and waiving their First Amendment right to criticize him.10 

In a further flimsy effort to fight dismissal, Mr. Smith also argues that there has 

been no discovery in this matter. Again, Mr. Smith’s argument is at odds with the legal 

standard governing anti-SLAPP motions to dismiss. As detailed in § III(E), infra, if Mr. 

Smith contends that discovery was necessary before resolution of this Motion, he has to make 

a showing that limited discovery is necessary to meet his burden of coming forth prima facie 

evidence a probability of prevailing on the claim. See Nev. Rev. Stat. § 41.660(4). This he 

 
10 Thus, as noted in the Motion and below, the Court should not only dismiss this case with 
prejudice and award fees and costs to Defendants, but additionally award Ms. Zilverberg and 
Ms. Eagan each $10,000.00 to Nev. Rev. Stat. 41.670(1)(b). 
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did not do. 

2. Granting Defendants’ Motion Would Not “Render All Causes 

of Action For Defamation Moot.” 

Mr. Smith argues that if this Court grants Defendants’ Motion, “then no individual 

could ever bring a claim for defamation and be successful, as any person accused of 

defamation could excuse their misconduct by a blanket statement they were unaware that the 

information was false. Such principal [sic] would allow individuals to post false and 

defamatory statement [sic] for the purposes of hurting another out of spite … and allow harm 

and damage to occur, without any repercussion as a result of the misconduct. Such principal 

[sic] would go against Tort law as established in this country and would render all causes of 

action for defamation moot.” (Opp., pp. 12:24 – 13:4.)  

Mr. Smith’s bizarre argument—perhaps designed to distract from his abject failure 

to include sufficient evidence to support his claims—completely elides two key facts. First, 

Mr. Smith is no ordinary defamation plaintiff—he is a public figure. (Compl., ¶¶ 7-12.) As a 

public figure, he must establish not only that Defendants’ statements were false, but also that 

Defendants made such false statements with “actual malice,” not mere negligence. (See § 

III(C)(1), supra.) Second—unlike Mr. Smith—Defendants have produced much more than a 

“blanket statement that they were unaware that the information was false.” (Opp., p. 12:26-

27.) Defendants have attached several exhibits to their Motion and the instant Reply 

demonstrating the veracity or their claims and their bases for believing in the truthfulness of 

their statements. Contrary to Mr. Smith’s assertion, the tort of defamation is alive and well, 

even in states with strong anti-SLAPP statutes. A defamation plaintiff—even a public 

figure—can still prevail by sufficiently pleading all the elements of defamation and providing 

evidence to support his claims. As demonstrated supra, Mr. Smith has simply failed to do so 

here, and therefore this Court should grant Defendants’ Motion without any worry that doing 

so will somehow bar future defamation plaintiffs from pursuing meritorious claims. 

/ / / 

/ / / 
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E. Mr. Smith is Not Entitled to Discovery in this Matter. 

Mr. Smith correctly notes that “there has been no discovery conducted by 

Defendants [sic] in this matter to verify any of the facts or alleged evidence presented in this 

matter.” (Opp., p. 19:15-16.) Indeed, neither party has conducted discovery in this matter, in 

accordance with Nev. Rev. Stat. § 41.660(3)(e) (staying discovery pending the Court’s ruling 

and disposition of an appeal from said ruling). This is in line with the spirit of Nevada’s anti-

SLAPP law, as staying discovery protects SLAPP defendants from having to endure the 

invasive, time-consuming, and costly process of civil discovery. 

Nevada anti-SLAPP law does allow for “limited discovery” for the purpose of 

ascertaining “information necessary to meet or oppose the burden [of the second prong of 

anti-SLAPP analysis].” Nev. Rev. Stat. § 41.660(4). However, the propriety of such limited 

discovery is premised “[u]pon a showing by a party that information … is in the possession 

of another party or a third party and is not reasonably available without discovery.” Id. Mr. 

Smith does not make a showing that any such information is not reasonably available without 

discovery; rather, Mr. Smith nakedly claims that he is entitled to broad discovery to challenge 

the “veracity and reliability” of Defendants’ evidence and to “cross-exam[ine] statements 

from third-party witnesses or verify that posts and text message threads used to support the 

Motion to Dismiss are no [sic] edited or varied in any way.” (Opp., p. 19:15-19.) 

This naked allegation is not even close to sufficient to demonstrate good cause, 

which “should include some explanation of ‘what additional facts [plaintiff] expects to 

uncover.” 1-800 Contacts, Inc. v. Steinberg, 107 Cal. App. 4th 568, 593–94, 132 Cal. Rptr. 

2d 789 (2003). Mr. Smith’s Opposition is entirely devoid of any additional facts he expects 

to uncover in the discovery process, and therefore he is not entitled to discovery in this matter. 

Indeed, Mr. Smith had a chance to dispute the authenticity and veracity of Defendants’ 

evidence in his Opposition and his own declaration, attached as Exhibit 1 to the Opposition. 

He also had the opportunity to present his own evidence, and at the very least specify the 

statements that form the gravamen of his Complaint. He had the opportunity to timely file 

written evidentiary objections to any or all of Defendants’ exhibits. He did not, and his 
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silence speaks volumes. Therefore, this Court may not permit any discovery in this matter, 

and should grant the Motion in its entirety. 

F. Mr. Smith is Not Entitled to Any Award, But Rather Should Be Liable 

for Defendants’ Attorney’s Fees, Costs, and Statutory Awards. 

Mr. Smith boldly argues that this Court should not only deny Defendants’ Motion, 

but award Mr. Smith attorney’s fees, costs and a statutory award of up to $10,000 under Nev. 

Rev. Stat. § 41.670(2)-(3). (Opp., pp. 19:23 – 20:5.) Mr. Smith further argues—without any 

citation or support—that “Defendants filed their Motion to Dismiss with no basis for doing 

so, as they had clear knowledge of the falsity of their statements, and such statements were 

made to further bolster private animosity and dispute between the parties, not a matter of 

public interest.” (Id., p. 20:6-8.) 

As argued supra and in the Motion, Defendants have met both prongs of Nevada’s 

anti-SLAPP calculus, and are therefore entitled to dismissal of this suit, attorney’s fees and 

costs, and a discretionary award of $20,000. Nev. Rev. Stat. §41.670(1)(a)-(b). However, 

should this Court deny Defendants’ anti-SLAPP Motion to Dismiss, the wealth of evidence 

and case law cited by Defendants in both the Motion and the instant Reply demonstrate that 

there was ample basis in fact and law for Defendants to move for dismissal under Nev. Rev. 

Stat. § 41.660. Thus, even if this Court does not grant the instant Motion, it cannot conclude 

that the Motion was “frivolous or vexatious” and therefore cannot order Defendants to pay 

Mr. Smith attorney’s fees and costs or any other statutory awards under Nev. Rev. Stat. § 

41.670(2)-(3). 

IV.          CONCLUSION 

As thoroughly argued in Defendants’ anti-SLAPP Motion to Dismiss and supra, 

Defendants have satisfied both prongs of Nevada’s anti-SLAPP analysis: they have 

demonstrated by a preponderance of the evidence that Mr. Smith’s lawsuit is based on their 

good faith communications in direct connection with an issue of public concern, and they 

have established that Mr. Smith cannot demonstrate any probability of prevailing on the 

merits of his claims. Mr. Smith’s Opposition, which is essentially lacking in citations to 
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relevant case law or evidence to support his arguments, does not give this Court any reason 

to hold otherwise. This Court must therefore grant Defendants’ anti-SLAPP Motion to 

Dismiss, award attorney’s fees and costs to Defendants, and exercise its discretion to award 

$10,000.00 to both Ms. Zilverberg and Ms. Eagan. 

Respectfully submitted this 27th day of September, 2019. 
 
/s/ Margaret A. McLetchie      
MARGARET A. MCLETCHIE, Nevada Bar No. 10931 
ALINA M. SHELL, Nevada Bar No. 11711 
LEO S. WOLPERT, Nevada Bar No. 12658 
MCLETCHIE LAW 
701 E. Bridger Avenue, Suite 520 
Las Vegas, NV 89101 
Telephone: (702) 728-5300; Fax (702) 425-8220 
Email: maggie@nvlitigation.com 
Counsel for Defendants Katy Zilverberg 
and Victoria Eagan 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

Pursuant to Administrative Order 14-2 and N.E.F.C.R. 9, I hereby certify that on 

this 27th day of September, 2019, I did cause a true copy of the foregoing REPLY IN 

SUPPORT OF SPECIAL MOTION TO DISMISS PURSUANT TO NEV. REV. STAT. § 

41.660 (ANTI-SLAPP) in Smith v. Zilverberg et al., Clark County District Court Case No. 

A-19-798171-C, to be served using the Odyssey E-File & Serve electronic court filing 

system, to all parties with an email address on record. 
 

  
      /s/ Pharan Burchfield        
      EMPLOYEE of McLetchie Law 

 

INDEX OF EXHIBITS 

Exhibit Description Bates Nos.  

18 Supplemental Declaration of Katy Zilverberg Z-E-141-Z-E-147 

 A – Screenshots of Mr. Smith’s eBay store 

B – Screenshots of Ms. Zilverberg’s eBay store 

C – Screenshots of Ms. Eagan’s eBay store 

D – Email from Ms. Zilverberg to Audrey Tracy 

E – June 13, 2018 email from YouTube re takedown of 

video 

F – July 16, 2019 email from YouTube re takedown of 

video 

Z-E-148-Z-E-149 

Z-E-150-Z-E-151 

Z-E-152-Z-E-153 

Z-E-154-Z-E-159 
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19 Supplemental Declaration of Victoria Eagan Z-E-164-Z-E-167 

 A – Screenshots of Mr. Smith’s eBay store 

B – Screenshots of Ms. Zilverberg’s eBay store 

C – Screenshots of Ms. Eagan’s eBay store 

Z-E-168-Z-E-169 

Z-E-170-Z-E-171 

Z-E-172-173 

20 Screenshot of June 6, 2018 Facebook post and 

comments 
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Katy Zilverberg <aboutiqueforhim@gmail.com>

Jason T. Smith
Katy Zilverberg <aboutiqueforhim@gmail.com> Fri, Apr 20, 2018 at 11:53 AM
To: "Tracy, Audrey" <audtracy@ebay.com>

This email is to express my concerns about Jason T. Smith, an eBay Influencer and leader in the seller community.

I first joined The Thrifting Board facebook group maybe mid 2016. I was only months into being an eBay seller but I'm a fast
learner so it wasn't long before I was answer people's questions and giving advice. I didn't know Jason T. Smith other than
knowing he was the leader of the group. I had virtually no interactions with him prior to being asked to be a lifeguard or
admin for his group. In the spring of 2017 they were looking for new lifeguards and a couple of the others had
recommended me based on my activity in the group so Jason asked me to join. In this email I'm going to give a
chronological list of incidents, some involving myself, some involving others.

* When I first started in the spring of 2017, there was an incident with a Thrifting Board (TTB) member who posted in the
Mid Century Modern facebook group basically talking about how much she didn't like Jason. Of course someone alerted
him to it and he proceeded to throw anyone out of TTB who "liked" or participated in the MCM thread about him. He then
posted in TTB while this woman was still a member, tagged her, and attacked her for the whole group to see. As soon as he
did this, he went in the Lifeguard private chat and basically said "ok girls, go get her", instructing us all to go attack. I didn't
and neither did a couple others but some did. It was super ugly and I believe someone sent screenshots of that post to
eBay, it may have been why he got pulled from the main stage at eBay Open last year, he told us about it. The woman also
was using a fake name on facebook, Jason had on of his followers track down her real name, her home address, and her
workplace. I don't know that he ever did anything with it but he threatened to. She was aware he had this information.

* Next there was an incident with Lynn Hudziak, an eBay seller and TTB member as well as a member of Jason's paid
group, the Secret Beach. I don't completely understand what happened or the truth behind it because it was all based on
Jason's telling. He was trying to raise money to help his friend Nadene who was in a tough spot, Lynn shared Nadene's
paypal email for people to contribute to and I believe this is where it all started because he was angry that she did that
instead of waiting for him to tell people how to help. Again, I'm not sure what all went do but I know he turned on Lynn,
threw her out of TTB and the Secret Beach, as far as I know he was badgering her through messages. I've attached a
screenshot titled "LynnHudziak1" that just shows how he talked about her in the lifeguard chat. I know she has said that his
bullying landed her in the hospital, I don't know what that's all about. I know Lynn would be willing to talk to someone at
eBay about what actually happened. She runs the Thrifty Adventures facebook group, she's just an older eBay seller who's
pretty involved in the seller community.

* Jason also just has a history of having big fall outs with friends and attacking them whenever he can. I know he gets very
threatened by other leaders in the seller community when they get attention from eBay. He absolutely hates Kathy Terrill
and was angry when he found out she was being sent to the eCom Chicago conference to talk about Promoted Listings.
He's somehow connected to the people who run that conference and he said he was going to talk to them and tell them not
to let Kathy speak there. I don't know that he actually did that or not but he said he was going to.

Here's where my story comes in. Jason and Victoria Eagan (LV Pink Panther) were close friends, both eBay sellers, both
living in Vegas they met a few years ago. Vikki has been a full-time eBay seller for over 10 years now and has even done
some blogging for eBay Open. She was never a lifeguard in TTB but she appeared on some of his YouTube shows and
was a prominent member of the group, known to be Jason's thrifting buddy. I knew her through TTB but didn't really have
any one on one interactions with her. I finally Vikki in person at eBay Open 2017 and we made a real connection. We
continued to talk after Open as friends but it soon became apparent there was something more between us. She was
married and it was a complicated situation obviously. She was scared but decided to leave her husband for me even though
she knew it was possibly going to end some friendships and turn her whole world upside down. This all developed in the
matter of two weeks and took place without us so much as holding hands, not that it's really anyone's business.

The only other person who knew what was happening was Robyn Haas, another seller and close friend to Vikki and Jason
both. Also there was a private chat ongoing with Vikki, myself, Robyn, and a few other eBay ladies. In the short period of
time that things were happening, Vikki disclosed to the lady chat that she was leaving her husband. One of the women
jokingly said it was probably for me and the truth all came out. A few days later Vikki finally went to Jason to tell him
everything. She had almost told him earlier but she was scared about how he would react. I reassured her that he would be
fine, I was wrong. When she told Jason, his first reaction was to be upset that he wasn't the first person told. When he
found out Vikki had told her friend Dana who is also her assistant, and the women in the lady chat, he took that as a slam
against him, that he didn't matter. I've attached screenshots titled "JasonKaty1-4" to show that this was the focus of hisZ-E-154
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anger. He also was for some reason concerned that the situation would hurt him and his business. Vikki had recently
started a Las Vegas Meetup group and had asked Jason to co-lead it with her. A month or so earlier he had asked me to be
his "second in command" in TTB, he was going to pay me $100 a month. He felt that because we were doing these two
ventures with him, we should have told him sooner. Again, this all happened in a two week period, Vikki was still processing
her feelings and had no obligation to tell anyone anything.

Jason became increasingly more upset. He threw Vikki out of TTB, blocked her on facebook, and soon after several other
people in the seller community also unfriended and blocked her. We do not know entirely what he told them but I do know
that he demanded loyalty and for people to choose. Theresa Cox has always kept out of any drama, she's an awesome,
positive influence in the seller community. She was also a lifeguard at this time as well as helping Jason in the Secret
Beach. She refused to drop Vikki and me as friends and was very supportive throughout this whole ordeal even though
Jason confronted her multiple times tell her she was being a terrible friend by continuing to associate with us. She told him
she would not choose sides. She and I did some videos together recently as I've been growing my YouTube channel, he
confronted her about that. She then make me a co-leader of her BOSS facebook group, he confronted her about that. If she
had listened to him, I wouldn't have had the opportunity to help run that group and it's a major part of my YouTube channel
and influence. He tried to keep that from happening for me, which does affect my business. Theresa has also expressed to
me that she wants to distance herself from Jason but she's afraid he will retaliate against her like he did with Vikki.

So soon after this all went down late August, early September, Jason went on a campaign to hurt Vikki and make her lose
as many friends as possible. He contacted friends of hers all over the country, contacted her soon to be ex husband, telling
many lies, inserting himself into her marriage. At the time we didn't know what all was being said but Vikki has recently
found out the major lie Jason has been telling to turn people against Vikki but first I need to give a little background.

In 2003 there was a fire at the Station club is West Warwick Rhode Island. The hair band Great White was playing, they set
off pyrotechnics at the beginning of the first song and within 90 seconds the whole building was blazing. 100 people died
that night, hundreds more injured. Vikki was in that fire, she was extremely lucky to escape with little long lasting injuries,
just some permanent lung damage and of course issues with PTSD. Soon after, Vikki started a nonprofit to raise money to
help survivors of the fire. Lawsuit money wasn't awarded for about 6 years but of course there was immediate need for
survivors and their families. So Vikki with no experience started a nonprofit and over time raised millions to help the
survivors. She was the public face of this tragedy because of her role in raising money, she was interviewed countless
times, featured on national tv, in national publications, etc. There's video footage from that night that show's Vikki being
pulled out of the building, she was there with 4 friends, one died. She was part of the class action lawsuit, testified in front of
a grand jury. Here is a Rolling Stone article from the 10 year anniversary where Victoria Eagan (Vikki) is quoted multiple
times:

https://www.rollingstone.com/music/news/the-great-white-nightclub-fire-ten-years-later-20130715

Website for documentary film that's coming out this year that Vikki is a part of:

https://www.theguestlistfilm.com/about/

Since then, Vikki works with two major charities related to burn survivors, one is the Phoenix Society who puts on a national
burn conference every year, Vikki volunteers at it, is part of the planning. The other is a summer week-long camp in
Washington for children who are burn survivors. The Station fire and working with burn survivors is a major part of Vikki's
identity and because of her work as an eBay seller, she has the freedom and the financial ability to give so much of her time
to helping others.

The reason I'm giving all this info is to express the gravity of what Jason has done. It turns out he has been telling who
knows how many people that Vikki was not actually in the Station fire, her presence is an easily verifiable fact, and that she
lied about being in it to get attention. This is a devastating and despicable lie for Jason to spread about Vikki. To anyone
that has heard this lie and believes, it probably should be no surprise that they would want nothing to do with her. Luckily at
least some people recognized it as a lie. I know Jason told Theresa Cox that she lied about the fire. I've also attached a
screenshot from the lifeguard private chat that Lorna Thompson gave me before she left the lifeguard team and TTB in our
defense. The file is titled "JasonFire". Everything he says there is a total fabrication.

I also recently spoke with Sophia Antillon, Jason's former assistant. I met her briefly at eBay Open but I really liked her and
she offered to take me hiking if I ever came for just a fun visit. When everything went down in late Aug/early Sept, she sent
me a nice message just saying she would understand if I needed to "unfriend" her. A screenshot is attached titled
"SophiaAntillon1". When I came to Vegas for a visit in October, I invited Sophia to go to haunted houses with us. She came
and when we expressed concern about her possible getting in trouble with Jason (she was still working for him at this time),
she said he knew she was going to hang out with us and he said it was fine. So we hung out that night and then I didn't talk
to or hear from Sophia again for months. I then heard she wasn't working for Jason anymore and I noticed that we weren't
fb friends anymore. We finally connected again to try and arrange a hike and I asked what happened. I've attached
screenshots of everything she told me and I'm sure she would be willing to talk to someone at eBay about her concerns
about what Jason might try to do to us in retaliation. They are titles "SophiaAntillon2-11".
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According to Sophia, Jason threatened to multiple people including herself that he planned to wait until he had Vikki and me
in a public place so that he could make a big scene and make Vikki cry in public. I am concerned that he may try to do
something at eBay Open. I'm not concerned about my physical safety but I am worried that he will attempt to instigate
something publicly or do something to hurt us professionally. He has already interfered with our relationships with other
people. According to Vikki's ex-husband, Jason allegedly told him not to worry, he was going to wait for the right time and
then do every he can to ruin me and my business. I don't have any proof of that but I know Jason well enough and have
heard enough from others that he is capable of at least trying to affect my life and hurt my work. I think there is extra
concern about this now that I have been working hard to build my YouTube channel as well as the BOSS facebook group.
People are responding well, my following is growing at a decent rate and I know that he has people watching us. He sent
his wife Staci to join the BOSS group, she's not a seller, she doesn't need to be there. I blocked her. He requested to follow
Vikki on instagram because her account is private. I don't know if that's an intimidation thing or what.

Jason doesn't like not having control and the more successful Vikki and I are, and more in the public eye, I do think he's
dangerous. I've underestimated him before and I wouldn't put anything past him now. He has hurt a lot of people, he has a
pattern of bullying. I know there are several people out there that he has hurt but they are afraid to come forward because
think he'll retaliate in some way. He hurts the eBay brand far more than he helps it. I understand that there are no perfect
leaders in the eBay seller community but Jason's influence is toxic and it's only a matter of time before he really takes
something too far. I don't think eBay wants to be connected to the path of destruction he leaves behind. I'm sure I'm not the
first person to bring these kinds of concerns to you. At this point Vikki has gone as far as speaking to a lawyer and while he
says she does have a case to go after Jason, ideally we wouldn't go that route. 

We both love the eBay community and I'm committed to keeping my YouTube channel and the BOSS fb group positive and
inspirational. I want to help other sellers be successful, I want to motivate people. I don't want this ugliness to touch the
good things I have created, I don't want us involved in any drama or online flame wars or in person dramatic, angry scenes.
I'm excited about this year's eBay Open, I think it's going to be an amazing event. I've finally convinced Vikki to go as well,
she's nervous about Jason, of course. I'm giving you all this information because we think eBay should be aware that this is
happening with one of your Influencers and that there is potential for some sort of blow up at eBay Open this year. Other
individuals who participated in Jason's hate campaign who knew the complete truth were Robyn Haas (who has since been
thrown out of Jason's circle for her own reasons), Kim Gordon (his current co-host), and Bridget Williams (TTB lifeguard).
Other people have been a part of it but I don't think they know that they have been lied to.

My apologies for the very long winded account in this email but I wanted to make sure I got all the facts out there. Please let
me know if you have any questions or need any clarification.

Thank you,

Katy Zilverberg

eBay username aboutiqueforhim
2017 eBay SHINE Award winner, Rising Star
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Katy Zilverberg <aboutiqueforhim@gmail.com>

YouTube Copyright Complaint Submission
YouTube Copyright <youtube-disputes+2he5py5in5lyj07@google.com> Wed, Jun 13, 2018 at 7:11 AM
Reply-To: YouTube Copyright <youtube-disputes+2he5py5in5lyj07@google.com>
To: aboutiqueforhim@gmail.com

Copyright Infringement Notification Confirmation
Thank you for your submission. It is under review to ensure it is valid and includes all
required elements. We will reply to this email when we’ve taken action on your
request.

Here is the information you filled in:

 
Copyright Owner Name (Company Name if applicable): Katy Zilverberg 
Your Full Legal Name (Aliases, usernames or initials not accepted): Katy Zilverberg 
Your Title or Job Position (What is your authority to make this complaint?): owner 
Address: 
83 Huntfield Dr 
Henderson, NV 89074 
US 
Username: Katy Zilverberg 
Email Address: aboutiqueforhim@gmail.com 
Phone: 5038819350 

URL of allegedly infringing video to be removed:
http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=9jIYmwXxDbs
Describe the work allegedly infringed: My YouTube video was reuploaded by
another user

YouTube URL: https://youtu.be/cet4vTRq1Oo
Where does the content appear? Entire video

URL of allegedly infringing video to be removed:
http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=mlcXKozYaqs
Describe the work allegedly infringed: My YouTube video was reuploaded by
another user

YouTube URL: https://youtu.be/cet4vTRq1Oo
Where does the content appear? Entire video

Country where copyright applies: US

I state UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY that:

I am the owner, or an agent authorized to act on behalf of the owner of an
exclusive right that is allegedly infringed.
I have a good faith belief that the use of the material in the manner complained
of is not authorized by the copyright owner, its agent, or the law; and
This notification is accurate.
I acknowledge that under Section 512(f) of the DMCA any person who
knowingly materially misrepresents that material or activity is infringing may be
subject to liability for damages.
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I understand that abuse of this tool will result in termination of my YouTube
account.

Authorized Signature: Katy Zilverberg

Sincerely,

— The YouTube Team

Help center • Email options

©2018 YouTube, LLC 901 Cherry Ave, San Bruno, CA 94066, USA
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Katy Zilverberg <aboutiqueforhim@gmail.com>

YouTube Copyright Complaint Submission
YouTube Copyright <youtube-disputes+0guppp3cehcww07@google.com> Tue, Jul 16, 2019 at 3:22 PM
Reply-To: YouTube Copyright <youtube-disputes+0guppp3cehcww07@google.com>
To: aboutiqueforhim@gmail.com

Copyright Infringement Notification Confirmation
Thank you for your submission. It is under review to ensure it is valid and includes all
required elements. We will reply to this email when we’ve taken action on your
request.

Here is the information you filled in:

 
Copyright Owner Name (Company Name if applicable): Katy Zilverberg 
Your Full Legal Name (Aliases, usernames or initials not accepted): Katy Zilverberg 
Your Title or Job Position (What is your authority to make this complaint?): It's my video 
Address: 
83 Huntfield Dr 
Henderson, Nevada 89074 
US 
Username: Katy & Vikki 
Email Address: aboutiqueforhim@gmail.com 
Phone: 5038819350 

URL of allegedly infringing video to be removed:
http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=6ceOcA6SzfM
Describe the work allegedly infringed: My YouTube video was reuploaded by
another user

YouTube URL: http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=cet4vTRq1Oo
Where does the content appear? Entire video

Country where copyright applies: US

I state UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY that:

I am the owner, or an agent authorized to act on behalf of the owner of an
exclusive right that is allegedly infringed.
I have a good faith belief that the use of the material in the manner complained
of is not authorized by the copyright owner, its agent, or the law; and
This notification is accurate.
I acknowledge that under Section 512(f) of the DMCA any person who
knowingly materially misrepresents that material or activity is infringing may be
subject to liability for damages.
I understand that abuse of this tool will result in termination of my YouTube
account.

Authorized Signature: Katy Zilverberg

Sincerely,

— The YouTube Team
Z-E-162

320

https://support.google.com/youtube/answer/6005900?hl=en
mailto:aboutiqueforhim@gmail.com
http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=6ceOcA6SzfM
http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=cet4vTRq1Oo
http://www.youtube.com/t/contact_us


Help center • Email options

©2019 YouTube, LLC 901 Cherry Ave, San Bruno, CA 94066, USA
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TRAN

IN THE EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

JASON SMITH, )
)

Plaintiff, )
)

vs. ) Case No. A-19-798171-C
) Dept. No. 24

KATY ZILVERBERG, ET AL,)
)

  Defendants.  )

MOTION TO DISMISS

Before the Honorable Jim Crockett

Thursday, October 3, 2019, 9:00 a.m.

Reporter's Transcript of Proceedings

REPORTED BY:

BILL NELSON, RMR, CCR #191
CERTIFIED COURT REPORTER
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APPEARANCES:

For the Plaintiff: Mikkaela Vellis, Esq.
Brian Boscher, Esq.

For the Defendants: Margaret McLetchie, Esq.
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Las Vegas, Nevada, Thursday, October 3, 2019

* * * * *

THE COURT: Page 16, Jason Smith versus

Katy Zilverberg.

MS. MC LETCHIE: Maggie McLetchie for the

Defendant.

MR. BOSCHER: Good morning.

Brian Boscher and Mikkaela Vellis for the

Plaintiff.

THE COURT: All right.

Have a seat.

So this is the Defendant's special motion

to dismiss pursuant to Nevada Revised Statute 41.660,

Nevada's anti-slap statute.

The Plaintiff, Jason Smith, sued the

Defendants, claiming that they defamed him.

Defendants claim that they were exercising

their first amendment rights to make good

communications in furtherance of the rights to free

speech and to in direct connection with an issue of

public concern and are ostensibly justifying and

filing their anti-slap motion to dismiss.

The Defendants have presented very

comprehensive information in the form of admissible
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evidence as required by EDCR 2.21, with supporting

affidavits and exhibits, to explain why they have

said the things they did, why the things they said

were stated in good faith in an effort to educate and

alert the public community involved in this thrifting

activity as to concerns they have about the

integrity, honesty and tactics of Mr. Smith.

In contrast to this factual information

offered by the Defendants to support their actions,

Mr. Smith's affidavit is comprised almost entirely of

what would be inadmissible conclusory statements

about what he presumes to be their intentions,

motivations, the Defendant's intentions, motivations,

state of mind, and inner most thoughts.

Rather than attest to the factual

information which he could observe and be a

percipient witness to, he made statements without

offering any factual support, such as, quote, Eagan

and Zilverberg became upset that I did not fully

support their relationship, close quotes.

They became upset.

So Mr. Smith is telling us he crawled

inside the mind of the Defendants and ascertained

that they became upset.

Instead of offering overt factual
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information that would allow the Court to conclude

that is what was going on, he claims to know this.

He offers no admissible evidence to support

his conclusion that they, quote, became upset, close

quotes.

The next paragraph he states that the

Defendants, quote, developed animosity and personal

spite towards me, close quotes.

This is entirely conclusory. And again, he

offers nothing in the way of specific factual

evidence that would lead the Court to make that

conclusion, or would justify such an inference being

made.

In another paragraph, paragraph 25, Smith

states, quote, Defendant's are aware that the YouTube

video is still posted by other users on-line, close

quotes.

Again, he's attesting that he knows what

the Defendants are aware of, but he's not offering

any evidence as to how it is that they would be aware

of that constructively or actually, and his

justification for making the statement is that

according to him still it's posted by other users,

not the Defendants, but again he offers no evidence

of this either.
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The remainder of the affidavit makes more

valid attempts to correct the record regarding his

criminal record, or lack there of, as a minor and as

an adult, but the Defendant's provide sufficient

information to justify why they believe certain

claims regarding restraining orders and criminal

history to be true.

And one of the Defendant's said in her

affidavit that Smith boasted to her that he had a

criminal history as a youth, that did not pursue him,

and that he had committed other felonies for which he

managed to allowed detection and prosecution.

Smith does not dispute or contest Eagan's

statement that he told her, paragraph 17 of her

affidavit, quote, on several occasions that he was

arrested when he was younger, close quotes.

I do want to know that Exhibit 10 cannot be

offered as justification for things alleged to have

taken place prior to the receipt of the writing by

Theresa Cox, since it is claimed that it was received

August 10th, 2019, over a year after the statements

had actually been alleged by the Plaintiff to be

actionable.

But on balance, there can be little serious

doubt that the Defendant's actions were justified,
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they were in good faith, and with regard to the

standards that apply the Supreme Court in Pope versus

Felhauer, F-e-l-h-a-u-e-r, laid out exactly the kinds

of standards that apply.

The moving parties must first show by a

preponderance of the evidence that the claim was

based upon a good faith communication in furtherance

of the right to petition or the right to free speech

and in direct connection with an issue of public

concern.

The Defendant has clearly done that.

The Supreme Court goes on to say, if the

moving party meets this burden, then the District

Court must determine whether the non-moving party has

established by clear and convincing evidence a

probability of prevailing on the claim, and that is

clearly not the case here, the non-moving party has

not come close to demonstrating by clear and

convincing evidence a probability of prevailing on

the claim.

The Supreme Court says that, a statement is

protected under the anti-slap laws if it meets one of

the four categories of protected speech under NRS

41.637.

One, it relates to an issue of public
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interest. This clearly relates to an issue of public

interest. It doesn't have to be the entire public

because nothing is ever of interest to the entire

public, there are always different sectors of the

population going to have a greater interest in an

issue than perhaps others, but it still relates to an

issue of public interest.

Second, it has to be made in the public

forum. Clearly that is the case.

And third, the statements have to be either

true or made without knowledge of their falsity, and

the Defendant's have clearly demonstrated that they

did not know that any of their statements contained

falsehoods.

The Supreme Court in Pope versus Felhauer

said, in Shapiro we explained that the legislature

had not defined, quote, public concern, close quotes,

so we adopted California principles to guide the

analysis.

They set forth five factors.

First, a public interest does not equate

with mere curiosity. Clearly this is not simply a

matter of mere curiosity.

Second, the matter of public interest

should be something of concern to a substantial
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number of people, a matter of concern to a speaker,

and a relatively small specific audience is not a

matter of public interest. This is not a relatively

small specific audience. This is a large body of

people.

Third, there should be some degree of

closeness between the challenged statements and the

asserted public interest. Clearly that is the case

here.

Fourth, the focus of the speaker's conduct

should be for public interest, rather than a mere

effort to gather ammunition for another round of

private controversy. Clearly the affidavits and the

documentation offered indicate that the speaker's

concern here has to do with the integrity of the

thrifting industry, the bullying tactics of Mr.

Smith, his dishonesty, his stalking efforts, his

giving people private information, and he's someone

who's run amok in this industry.

And fifth, the person cannot turn otherwise

private information into a matter of public interest

simply by communicating it to a large number of

people, and that is not the case here.

So I think that the case meets the

requirements of the statute in Pope versus Felhauer,
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and the standards have been adopted from California

regarding the public interest.

So I think that the motion is appropriate

under the anti-slap statute and should be granted.

I'm happy to hear anything either side

wishes to offer, in addition to what was said in your

briefs.

MS. MC LETCHIE: Your Honor, just very

briefly, I did want to note for the Court that you

had mentioned that the evidentiary burden was clear

and convincing.

Once it passes to the Defendants it has

been changed by the Nevada Legislature to a prima

facie case, but even that let's our standard --

clearly they don't meet it.

THE COURT: Thank you.

MR. BOSCHER: That was going to be my first

comment, so that makes it easier.

The concerns I have, Judge, and I

understand what you're saying in your ruling, when we

are talking about some of the defamatory statement, I

don't think we could be candid, some of these

statements aside from the public interest are clearly

defamatory, when they are saying that somebody has a

restraining order against them, and they don't, and
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putting it out in the world, I mean that is clearly a

false statement of fact that is out to injure his

reputation.

The only evidence that I saw --

THE COURT: The problem is, it's not

defamatory per se.

You would have to demonstrate if there was

actual damage to the Plaintiff.

MR. BOSCHER: That's where I was going to

ask Your Honor the question, because that to me seems

to go kind of side and side with the statement has to

concern the public interest.

I don't really understand Your Honor's

ruling as it relates to the fact that this person may

or may not have restraining orders against them, and

the other one that is head-scratching is that he

apparently according to the statements the Defendants

provided was convicted of being a minor in possession

of alcohol when he was 35 years old living in a state

he didn't live in, so --

THE COURT: I saw that.

MR. BOSCHER: I don't understand how that

could be -- how you could in good faith make that

statement when the age is in discrepancy, it is what

it is, but I understand what you're saying about
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defamation per se and relation, but it seems to be

the same standard for the anti-slap standard.

Again, the only evidence I saw that was --

showed good faith is that they thought that he had

restraining orders against him is hearsay.

There was an e-mail and a couple of

conversations I think would be inadmissible evidence,

and that is the basis by which they are saying --

putting out in the world my client has restraining

orders against him, and that has anything to the with

thrifting, nothing to do with everything else they've

talked about.

They are saying, he's committed criminal

violations for which restraining orders were entered

against him based upon an e-mail and an off-the-cuff

statement that again is inadmissible hearsay.

THE COURT: Remember that there's not a

prohibition against making false statements.

There is a prohibition against making

statements known to be false.

Big difference.

False statements can be made, but unless

they are known to be false they are not actionable

under this context.

MR. BOSCHER: I understand that, Your
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Honor, but I guess my reading of Pope is, the

standard is a little higher than someone told me

something, and so I went and told the world that this

other person has restraining orders against them, or

has apparently created an environment that caused

people wanted to commit suicide, those are very bold,

big statements against, and individual's

representation, and a business representation,

whatever you want to say, basically implying he's

causing people to commit suicide, he's a criminal,

has restraining orders against him, and the only

basis for making those statements and putting them

out on YouTube and as far as I can tell from the

e-mail, an e-mail and statements that are kind of

second and thirdhand hearsay, I don't think that

rises to the showing of a good faith belief, that or

lack of knowledge these statements are false, they

didn't do anything to back it up.

In fact, if you look at the evidence that

they presented, they ran a criminal investigation

record of my client that was just wrong. I mean, it

was just blatantly someone else that --

THE COURT: I understand these are your

contentions, but you know where is the evidence you

want to offer in opposition to that?
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The affidavit of Mr. Smith was grossly

insufficient to make this prima facie showing there's

a probability of prevailing on the merits.

MR. BOSCHER: I understand Your Honor's

concern about the affidavit, but then I would ask the

back up question is, how do I prove a negative, other

than Mr. Smith saying I was not convicted of minor

possession of alcohol when I was 35 years old,

because I was 35 years old, didn't live in Ohio, I'm

not really sure what other evidence I could provide.

THE COURT: Here's the problem:

There are other statements that are made

with supporting documentation, the outing of that

individual, okay, publishing her personal home

address, her real name and so forth. He doesn't deny

that.

The accusations of intimidation and

bullying and excluding people from panels and

presentations at thrifting seminars, he hasn't denied

that, so there are things that are said.

Is everything the Defendant said about him

true?

No.

I think they would concede that.

But the overall impression that one has is,
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that they were basically providing information about

his reputation and specific acts and his character

based upon experience they had with him personally,

or experienced that others had with these people

regarded as reliable reporters of information, and

some of those people were not reliable, but given the

overall context, I think the Defendants clearly

demonstrate to this Court they were acting in good

faith.

I think they would in fact concede that

some of their information turned out to be incorrect,

but the bulk of it, the overwhelming majority,

appears to be well-founded and to have been

communicated truthfully and in good faith.

And as to those items that were truthfully

communicated, Mr. Smith just avoids dealing with them

head on, he chooses to, since apparently he can't

deny under oath they took place, he just doesn't

mention those.

Instead, he focuses all of his attention on

the errors in terms of the restraining order and

criminal history.

He doesn't deny he has a conversation with

Miss Eagan where she says he accuses her of having

reported to others he had a criminal history.
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She says, I never told anybody about his

criminal history, but I can tell you that he told me

he had a criminal history.

So these are important considerations,

Smith doesn't address it in his effort to disqualify

these statements as in good faith dealing with the

matter of public interest, and therefore is entitled

to protection of the anti-slap statute.

MR. BOSCHER: Well, now my other concern I

guess, maybe I misunderstood the standard the Supreme

Court adopted, that I think what Your Honor's saying

is, if most of this wasn't -- if some turned out to

be not true, whether they investigate or not, if it

was in good faith, the fact the handful of these

things turned out to be not true, the fact most of it

is true, unrebutted, is enough for Your Honor, and

I'll take that if that's it.

THE COURT: There's no demonstration of

known falsehood anywhere.

MR. BOSCHER: The other thing -- or other

question I have, this again, the question I had was

of the public concern.

I don't think if I asked Your Honor before

you read the motion if I walked around the courtroom,

asked a hundred people if they knew who Jason T.
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Smith was, they would know.

I don't think if I walked down Fremont

Street, asked 200 people who Jason T. Smith is, or

his relationship history, that they would know.

I have a real problem, he's a public

figure, and this is a public concern.

This isn't rats running around a restaurant

going to make anybody goes there sick, this is a very

small insulate community, and again the communication

to me seemed very much of people with personal beefs

against each other squabbling on-line and squabbling

in a public forum, which again doesn't rise to the

standard that you would have to have for a anti-slap

motion, I don't see the public concern, or that he's

even a public figure either.

THE COURT: Well, remember it doesn't have

to be all of the public, it just has to be a public

concern, and if the issues that are raised and talked

about by the Defendants are of interest to the

thrifting community, the thrifting community is a

public interest, and although it's definitely smaller

than all of the Democrats, or all the Republicans, or

all the people that live in Nevada, but definitely a

much smaller group, but in fact because of the fact

that it's an internet-based marketing system, it
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actually touches upon many, many people, I think

maybe I read 55,000 people are involved in this

thrifting activity, that is a large number of people,

as opposed to somebody beefing in an HOA situation

and complaining and making comments about other

members of the board, that is a very small insular

body, and I don't think the public interest would be

invoked.

I suppose it could be under certain

circumstances, but generally I would say, no.

So while it is not the public at large, I

do think it's the public interest concern.

MR. BOSCHER: Okay.

Well, Your Honor's made your point.

I respectfully disagree, but that is okay,

that's why you wear the robe and I don't.

So those are my questions.

I didn't think that was --

THE COURT: All right.

MR. BOSCHER: Thank you.

MS. MC LETCHIE: If I may, Your Honor, Mr.

Smith can't actually contest today he's not famous,

or a public figure, because he put in his Complaint

he is.

You or I may not have known him.
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THE COURT: His beef was, I'm so

well-known, I understand that.

MS. MC LETCHIE: I think the confusion

about whether or not somebody is in the public

interest, this would affect a substantial business

community like this, it is.

Another issue the Plaintiff's confused

about the criminal history issue, there's amorphous

allegations my client said he had a criminal history,

we did not include that printout to say that's what

they said, or say the things that appeared in that

report were true, but rather that they had seen them.

Most fundamentally I think the central

confusion the Plaintiff has is that the Plaintiff's

going to have to establish actual malice, not just

there's no requirement the Defendants or any member

of the public before they speak make sure that their

statements are based on non-hearsay.

The hearsay issue's an issue for this case,

but not for what they said, Your Honor.

With regards to the take-down and the

bullying issues, those are likely non-actionable, or

we've already proven them to be true if they are

factual matters because so many people have said the

Plaintiff did bully, Your Honor.

364



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

BILL NELSON & ASSOCIATES 702.360.4677
Certified Court Reporters Fax 702.360.2844

20

THE COURT: Okay.

So I think the anti-slap motion is

appropriate, well-supported in law, and based upon

the admissible evidence I'm granting it.

There remains the issue of awarding of

damages to the Defendants and the award of attorney's

fees.

Are we here to address that today?

MS. MC LETCHIE: Well, Your Honor, I would

like leave to file a motion for attorney's fees.

I do think we have established due to I

think the problematic nature of the Complaint, and

even the response to the motion to dismiss, I do

think this is a case in which the Defendants have

relatively small access to funds compared to the

Plaintiff, I do think this is the kind of case in

which the Plaintiff is entitled to the award, but I'm

happy to address that additionally in the motion for

fees and costs if the Court would prefer.

THE COURT: My reading is, I think you are

entitled to an award of statutory damages too, but

that is just a leaning, so I would like to address

that separately, and let's don't re-argue whether or

not I think the motion, the anti-slap motion, should

have been granted, let's focus our attention now I've
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decided that to look at the issue of whether or not

this is a case where the Plaintiff should be -- the

Defendants should be awarded the statutory damages

and attorney's fees.

All right?

MR. BOSCHER: We'll take a look what

counsel files and address just that issue when we

argue.

THE COURT: All right.

MS. MC LETCHIE: Your Honor, there's one

remaining issue.

Before I was counsel on the case the

parties did enter into a stipulated preliminary

injunction.

My client's not intending to re-put up the

Facebook post. I don't even know they are intending

to re-put up the YouTube video, but we're going to

seek to dissolve that stipulated preliminary

injunction.

THE COURT: That is not in front of me.

MS. MC LETCHIE: Correct, Your Honor.

THE COURT: So let's focus on the issue of

statutory damages and attorney's fees.

How much time do you need to file your

motion for damages and attorney's fees?
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MS. MC LETCHIE: I would say, two weeks,

Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay.

THE CLERK: October 17th.

THE COURT: October 17th for the motion to

refile, and then ten days, two weeks?

They've changed this whole date

calculation, so let's say two weeks to file an

opposition.

MR. BOSCHER: So due on the 31st?

THE COURT: October 31st.

MR. BOSCHER: I did want to adress that

whole thing because I think the rules are a little in

flux, but --

THE COURT: There was just an article that

was written in the Clark County Bar by Justice

Gibbons and Justice Pickering, and one of the

emphasis that it made was that we're too -- we

gravitate towards these seven, fourteen, twenty-one,

multiples of seven days, it makes sense, I mean the

whole three day, ten day, twenty-one1, but none of

those ever made sense in terms of trying to keep

track of them, so I think that we're going to try to

err on the side of using these in multiples of seven

days, and then seven or fourteen days, to file your
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reply.

MS. MC LETCHIE: Seven days is fine, Your

Honor.

THE COURT: Okay.

THE CLERK: November 7th.

THE COURT: November 7th.

And then let's set it out for the 19th,

November 19th for the hearing.

Now --

MS. MC BRIDE: I think the 19th is really

full, but the 21st isn't.

THE COURT: The 21st.

I don't need anything this thick.

MS. MC LETCHIE: Okay.

THE COURT: All right.

THE CLERK: November 21st at 9 a.m.

THE COURT: November 21st, 9 a.m., is the

hearing.

MR. BOSCHER: For judicial efficiency, if

we are going to seek -- or you are going to seek to

dissolve the injunctions in place, maybe we do it in

the same briefings heard on the 21st, see if we can

get rid of it?

THE COURT: No, I would rather sequester

the issues, but if you want to file a separate issue
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to dissolve that, you can do it with the same

timetable.

MR. BOSCHER: I was wanting to make sure

we're efficient, not having two hearings on related

issues.

THE COURT: How do we make sure that gets

heard on the 21st?

MS. MC BRIDE: Just put it on calendar for

two matters that day.

THE COURT: All right.

Now, remember EDCR 2.20 puts on the moving

party the obligation to see to it I have the motion,

they provide a copy of their opponent's opposition,

and their reply.

So you can't sit back and wait for the

opponent to get the courtesy copy to me.

I just wanted to reiterate that.

Thank you.

MR. BOSCHER: Thank you, Judge.

MS. MC BRIDE: Your Honor, before the

status check, this motion to dismiss is going to

close this case, so a status check on the order on

the motion to dismiss, how long?

MR. BOSCHER: I would think in terms of the

same question, presumably She will run the order by
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me, we will get it submitted within the time frames.

I don't know we need a status check before

the next hearing, unless you really want us to come

back in.

MS. MC BRIDE: The Court wants the order on

file prior to all of this.

THE COURT: November 21st is a long way

away, and we're talking about an order I need within

ten days from today.

MR. BOSCHER: We can have a status check on

the 31st, like you've done with all the other orders,

and then no problem.

THE COURT: That's fine.

MS. MC BRIDE: Filed, not submitted.

MR. BOSCHER: Filed, yes.

MS. MC LETCHIE: Filed by?

THE CLERK: Filed by October 31st.

THE COURT: Filed before October 31st.

So you don't have to be here.

MR. BOSCHER: Understood, Your Honor.

Thank you.

MS. MC LETCHIE: Thank you, Your Honor.

THE CLERK: That's at 9:00 a.m.

(Proceedings concluded.)
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MOT 
MARGARET A. MCLETCHIE, Nevada Bar No. 10931 
ALINA M. SHELL, Nevada Bar No. 11711 
LEO S. WOLPERT, Nevada Bar No. 12658 
MCLETCHIE LAW 
701 E. Bridger Avenue, Suite 520 
Las Vegas, NV 89101 
Telephone: (702) 728-5300; Fax (702) 425-8220 
Email: maggie@nvlitigation.com 
Counsel for Defendants Katy Zilverberg 
and Victoria Eagan 
 

EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT 

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 

JASON T. SMITH, an individual, 
  
                         Plaintiff, 
vs. 

KATY ZILVERBERG, an individual; 
VICTORIA EAGAN, an individual; and 
DOES I through X, inclusive, and ROA 
CORPORATIONS I through X, inclusive,  
 
                         Defendants. 

Case No.: A-19-798171-C 

Dept. No.: XXIV 

MOTION TO DISSOLVE 
PRELIMINARY INJUNCTION 
 
Hearing Date: November 21, 2019 
Hearing Time: 9:00 a.m. 

Defendants Katy Zilverberg and Victoria Eagan hereby move this Court to dissolve 

the preliminary injunction entered into by stipulation on July 19, 2019 (on file with this 

Court). This Motion is based on the following Memorandum of Points and Authorities and 

exhibits attached thereto, the papers and pleadings already on file herein, and any oral 

argument the Court may permit at the hearing of this Motion. 

Dated this the 17th day of October, 2019. 
 

/s/ Margaret A. McLetchie   
MARGARET A. MCLETCHIE, Nevada Bar No. 10931 
MCLETCHIE LAW 
Counsel for Defendants Katy Zilverberg 
and Victoria Eagan 

  

Case Number: A-19-798171-C

Electronically Filed
10/17/2019 12:43 PM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT
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MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES 

I. INTRODUCTION 

On July 19, 2019, the parties to this litigation entered into a stipulated preliminary 

injunction mutually enjoining each other from making “verbal comments or statements, and 

from directing or requesting others to make any verbal comments or statements, about [each 

other] and/or [their] businesses to any third parties at any time, including at any conventions 

attended by [the parties].” (July 19, 2019 Joint Stipulation and Order for Preliminary 

Injunction, on file with this Court (the “Speech Injunction”) pp. 2-3.) This stipulated 

temporary injunction is set to “expire at the conclusion of the trial on the merits.” (Id., p. 4.) 

The Speech Injunction must accordingly be dissolved immediately. This matter has 

been resolved because the Court granted Defendants’ Special Anti-SLAPP Motion to 

Dismiss. The resolution operates as an adjudication on the merits. See Nev. Rev. Stat. § 

41.660(5) (“If the court dismisses the action pursuant to a special motion to dismiss filed 

pursuant to subsection 2, the dismissal operates as an adjudication upon the merits.”). Thus, 

pursuant to the plain language of the Joint Stipulation and Order for Preliminary Injunction 

and the operation of Nevada’s anti-SLAPP statute, this Court must order the Preliminary 

Injunction dissolved. 

Even if this were not the case, there is good cause to dissolve the Preliminary 

Injunction, which was entered before Defendants had counsel with First Amendment 

experience to protect their rights in this case. 

II. PROCEDURAL HISTORY 

On July 9, 2019, Mr. Smith filed a Complaint against Ms. Zilverberg and Ms. Eagan 

alleging causes of action for defamation, conspiracy, and injunctive relief. 

On July 19, 2019, the parties entered into a joint stipulation for a preliminary 

injunction, which resulted in an order entered by the Court on July 19, 2019 drastically liming 

the speech of the parties (the “Speech Injunction”). In addition to mandating removal of 

social media posts regarding each other, the Speech Injunction enjoining the parties from 

making future social media posts or other communications regarding each other (or the 
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instant litigation). In pertinent part, the Stipulation and Order limits the speech of Ms. 

Zilverberg and Ms. Eagan as follows: 
 
Defendants and/or their agents are enjoined from making any verbal 
comments or statements, and from directing or requesting others to make 
any verbal comments or statements, about Plaintiff and/or his businesses to 
any third parties at any time, including at any conventions attended by the 
Defendants. If any persons specifically ask Defendants about the above-
captioned litigation and/or Plaintiffs’ involvement therein, Defendants 
agree to not provide any comment to such persons regarding Plaintiff or the 
above-captioned litigation. 
 

III. LEGAL ARGUMENT    

As noted above, the Speech Injunction must be dissolved due to the resolution of 

this case pursuant to the anti-SLAPP statute.  

Even if this were not the case, there is good cause to set aside the Speech Injunction. 

As detailed in Defendants Special Motion to Dismiss (at pp. 22:19 – 25:11, on file with this 

Court) an injunction is a prior restraint, and is generally impermissible to silence speech.  

Both the U.S. Constitution and the Nevada Constitution protect the right to speak freely, 

which includes the right to engage in speech critical of businesses.  The First Amendment, 

applied to the states through the Fourteenth Amendment, of course protects “free speech.”  

Similarly, Article 1, section 9 of the Nevada Constitution unequivocally provides that “every 

citizen may freely speak, write and publish his sentiments on all subjects, being responsible 

for the abuse of that right.”  The Nevada Supreme Court has observed “the constitutional 

right to free speech . . . embraces every form and manner of dissemination of ideas held by 

our people”  and that “[f]ree speech . . . must be given the greatest possible scope and have 

the least possible restrictions imposed upon it, for it is basic to representative democracy.”  

Culinary Workers Union v. Eighth Judicial Dist. Court, 66 Nev. 166, 207 P.2d 990, 993, 994 

(1949);1 see also People for the Ethical Treatment of Animals (PETA) v. Bobby Berosini, 

 
1 In Culinary Workers, on a writ of prohibition, the Nevada Supreme Court overturned a 
district court injunction against peaceful picketing that had been based in part on the fact that 
an “unfair” sign was untruthful.  Id. at 995.  The Supreme Court noted that statements of 
opinion “are not subject to judicial restraint.” Id.  
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Ltd., 111 Nev. 615, 625 (Nev. 1995) (reversing injunctive relief in a defamation case and 

holding that the “the constitutional privilege provided by the Nevada Constitution protects 

the animal rights activists [speakers] from defamation liability.”); see also First National 

Bank of Boston v. Bellotti, 435 U.S. 765, 783, 98 S.Ct. 1407, 1419, 55 L.Ed.2d 707 

(1978)(“the First Amendment goes beyond protection of the press and the self-expression of 

individuals to prohibit government from limiting the stock of information from which 

members of the public may draw.”). 

 While here, the parties stipulated to the Speech Injunction, Defendants did so before 

they had counsel to address the First Amendment implications of doing so and in the case in 

general. Accordingly, while parties are ordinarily bound by their stipulations, courts will set 

them aside to prevent manifest injustice2— and, like any agreement, a stipulation is subject 

to being set aside if based on mistake. As the Nevada Supreme Court has explained: 
 
A stipulation may be set aside upon a showing that it was entered into 
through mistake, fraud, collusion, accident or some ground of like nature. 
See Gottwals vs. Rencher, 60 Nev. 35, 47, 98 P.2d 481 (1940). Whether a 
stipulation should be set aside on such grounds is generally left to the 
discretion of the trial court. Los Angeles City Sch. Dist. vs. Landier 
Management Co., 177 Cal.App.2d 744, 2 Cal.Rptr. 662 (Ct.App.1960); 
Singleton vs. Pichon, 102 Idaho 588, 635 P.2d 254 (Idaho 1981); McFarling 
vs. Demco, Inc., 546 P.2d 625 (Okl.1976). 
 

Citicorp Servs., Inc. v. Lee, 99 Nev. 511, 513, 665 P.2d 265, 266–67 (1983). Here, even if 

there were not a final resolution on the merits, the Speech Injunction must be set aside as it 

was based on mistake and impinges on Defendants’ First Amendment rights. 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

 
 

2 See, e.g., § 8:50.Stipulations, 4 Williston on Contracts § 8:50 (4th ed.). 
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IV. CONCLUSION 

For the foregoing reasons, this Court must grant Defendants’ Motion to Dissolve 

the Speech Injunction. 

Respectfully submitted this 17th day of October, 2019. 
 
/s/ Margaret A. McLetchie      
MARGARET A. MCLETCHIE, Nevada Bar No. 10931 
ALINA M. SHELL, Nevada Bar No. 11711 
LEO S. WOLPERT, Nevada Bar No. 12658 
MCLETCHIE LAW 
701 E. Bridger Avenue, Suite 520 
Las Vegas, NV 89101 
Telephone: (702) 728-5300; Fax (702) 425-8220 
Email: maggie@nvlitigation.com 
Counsel for Defendants Katy Zilverberg 
and Victoria Eagan 
 
 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

Pursuant to Administrative Order 14-2 and N.E.F.C.R. 9, I hereby certify that on 

this 17th day of October, 2019, I did cause a true copy of the foregoing MOTION TO 

DISSOLVE PRELIMINARY INJUNCTION in Smith v. Zilverberg et al., Clark County 

District Court Case No. A-19-798171-C, to be served using the Odyssey E-File & Serve 

electronic court filing system, to all parties with an email address on record. 
 

   
 
      /s/ Pharan Burchfield       
      EMPLOYEE of McLetchie Law 
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